
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, June 1st, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member (absent)



Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 



Mr. John Milmore, CAC Chair



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF APRIL 6, 2010
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked may I have a motion for the adoption of the minutes of April 6th?
Mr. John Bernard stated so moved, seconded. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I’m submitting some corrections.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)
PB 24-06    a.
Public Hearing: Application and Draft Environmental Impact Statement dated February 5, 2010 of Ace Sport Realty Holding Corp., c/o Phillip Hersh, for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for two retail/office buildings totaling approximately 27,400 sq. ft. located on a 2.08 acre parcel on the north side of Route 6 at the intersection with the Bear Mountain Parkway and Jacobs Hill Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Retail/Office Buildings Main Street Plaza” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 19, 2008.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing, if you are here for this particular case would you please come up, identify yourself and make your concerns known.

Mr. Frank Righetti stated I reside on the opposite side of the Hersh property on Route 6.  I’m not here to approve or condemn the Hersh situation or the Hersh application.  I’m here to try to prevent a very serious water condition that you may or may not be aware of at the Jacobs Hill site.  I own property at 2051 East Main Street which is directly across the street from the Hersh property and when I purchased this property, incidentally it was purchased from Fred Hersh and Duke Hersh which was related to the Hersh family, and this building had a very dry basement.  We had no problems with water or anything like that, however, a few years later they started to develop the Jacobs Hill for a series of restaurants and things where King Buffet is at the present time and in doing so they were blasting the rock to level it off and make the grade.  Since the blasting started, we received water leakage in the basement of my building.  It existed for several years.  We were pumping water and we tried to stop the leak by putting in all types of different ideas and none of them really prevailed.  However, after the Jacobs Hill or when it was still in its construction stage, the State of New York repaired Route 6 and in doing so, at the same time, the Montrose Water District connected their water trunk alongside the road connecting the Montrose Water District to the Peekskill Water District.  I’m sure you’re all aware of that and in doing so the engineer who was doing the project, he came over to me and he says “come over here I want to show you something,” and I walked to the edge of Route 6 and he says “have you any idea how much water is coming down from the Bear Mountain Bridge Road and the Jacobs Hill Road and it’s all underground?”  I said “well, what do you do about something like this?”  He says “well, it’s on the surface of the rock.”  In other words, Jacobs Hill is a large rocky ledge.  The water is on the surface of the rock but it’s four or five or six feet under the soil of the surface that’s there so this underground seepage of water flows by gravity naturally towards Route 6 under the road and it was seeping into my building since they started the blasting.  So, what am I talking about?  I’m talking about not allowing blasting to take place at the construction of the Hersh property that’s anticipated.  If that happens, the water flow will be diverted again.  Now, let me go back to when that engineer was talking to me and showing me the water that was coming down from the hill, he says “we can prevent a lot of this water from just continuing down by putting drain pipes” and 4-inch plastic drain pipes were installed above the water conduit.  Where the steel conduit connected to the City of Peekskill water they installed 4-inch plastic drain pipes and that connected to the water that comes from the Montrose Water District in the back, underneath that Bear Mountain Bridge Parkway, across my property and onto Route 6 and goes all the way down to Macgregor’s Pond.  Now, that’s right in front of the Hersh property.  In fact, that brook goes under Jacobs Hill road and continues all the way down to Macgregor’s Pond.  My concerns are if they start blasting again, incidentally let me make a remark that since they put that drainage pipe I do not have any more leakage and seepage of water in my building, the basement is perfectly dry.  An eagle trophy, an awards company is conducting their business without losing the basement.  Now, if you allow the contractors to blast the rock, who’s going to be responsible for any damage if I start to get water again?  Who do I turn to?  It’s really a bad situation and it’s very serious.  I have no way of stopping that water if it starts to come in again.  I cannot dig up Route 6 and put more drain pipes.  Gentlemen, I request, please do not allow any blasting to take place on Jacobs Hill.  Thank you.
Ms. Susan Aubrey we were here last month at the meeting with a very small cadre of folks from Woodcrest at Jacobs Hill.  I serve as the President of the Board of Managers.  We’re here again and now instead of the four of us we have a whole group.  Would you like to stand up, all the people of Woodcrest of Jacobs Hills?  Would you like to stand up all the people from the apartments at Jacobs Hill?  We’re all here in force and we’re concerned about the same thing this gentleman is concerned about and I thank you very much for your remarks because they were fabulous.  Right now we’re going through a major, major renovation project up at Woodcrest at Jacobs Hill.  We’re four years old.  We’ve had massive water intrusion.  The builder, through a settlement agreement, is rebuilding the facilities, both buildings.  This would be disastrous to have blasting remove or undo all the good that we’re doing right now.  It would be disastrous.  We are concerned about the blasting.  We’re very, very close to the site.  We’re also worried about, we’re a senior development of 55 and over, also worried about traffic.  We go up and down the hill.  We’re worried about the access to the property.  Do you have any idea how that’s going to be structured, aside from the blasting, the water intrusion, the noise level, the environmental problems that we’re going to have?  Do you have any idea how they’re going to access the road?
Mr. Ivan Kline responded it’s all set out in their plans if you open the DEIS it’s all set out there. 

Ms. Susan Aubrey asked would you like to just explain.  Is it coming up from the hill to the right?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I think the applicant can explain it.  I’m just saying if any one member of the public wanted to know this it’s available in the documents on file. 

Ms. Susan Aubrey asked how are you guaranteed that we won’t have any damage from the blasting?  We have two buildings.  We have 58 condos, three-story buildings.  How are you going to guarantee that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know that the Board actually guarantees such things, what we have to do is to make sure that the person or the company blasting is certified.  There are some members of the Board, including me, who are not much into blasting so that just goes without saying but I don’t know that any of us could just stop a project for blasting alone and we certainly do not guarantee that somebody, somewhere won’t have problems because of blasting.  We cannot guarantee that.

Ms. Susan Aubrey stated we’re asking you to maybe make a site visit up.  I’d be very happy to welcome you and you can see what we’re doing there and you can see the renovation project that’s in progress right now.  We’re fixing everything and making it right at the builder’s expense.  Certainly, we have waited a very long time to do this.  We are very concerned the people here do not want to go through a similar situation like we’re going through now.  That is a worry.  Just to tell you quickly, I had a house on McKinley Street for 35 years and they developed 36 condos behind my home and the very first day of blasting I lost my pool and I was farther away than Jacobs Hill Woodcrest condominiums are to your site right now so yes, we are very concerned.  We’re also concerned about the environmental issues.  If we have professionals who are going to work with us I’d be happy to meet with anyone and have you come to the site, see the site so that we can guarantee any of the damage you make, and there will be damage, that you will be responsible for it.  I have all the people here from Woodcrest at Jacobs Hill, is there someone who’d like to stand up and say something?

Mr. Ed Vergano asked can somebody from the applicant please click on one of the pdf files so we can see the drawing?  Fred could you just explain what we’re looking at real quick?

Mr. Fred Wells stated this is a colored site plan.  It shows the two buildings, the two rectangular buildings.  This is a southerly building and northerly building.  The property outline I’ll go over it here is approximately this.  Route 6 is on the bottom.  Jacobs Hill is right here, Jacobs Hill Road.  Pike Plaza’s here and Bear Mountain Parkway is here.  

Ms. Nancy Spizzirro stated I think one of the concerns that we also have is – we are concerned as to what type of businesses or types of either restaurants or types of recreational facility they’re planning to put on.  This is one of my concerns because on a Saturday evening, King Buffer just is overloaded with cars, traffic, it’s not accessible for us seniors to go in-and-out of our own hill there and it concerns me if it’s a sporting goods, or whatever I don’t understand the name, what is their intention?  What do they intend to put there because that too will affect our senior complex.

Ms. Susan Aubrey stated I agree with Nancy.  We don’t know what to expect and one of the things I mentioned at the last meeting is if you go along Route 6 for about probably 2 miles after Jacobs Hill and also at Pike Plaza, you’ll see a lot of empty storefronts.  This is a major concern to the residents at Woodcrest at Jacobs Hill.  What are we going to have there?  Is it comfortable for people?  Right now we’ve had some problems with the property as it is now.  We have teenagers who have been playing ball, I guess throwing a whole bunch of debris.  We’ve called the Town several times to have them clean it up and those are just kids playing football.  Can you imagine what we’re going to have if we have 50 or 60 parking spaces there?  I can understand if it was office businesses and it was going to enhance the community and do something beneficial for the economy but if we’re going to have 16 fast-food places or sports centers there or even nursery schools I think that would be a problem, I really do.  I really employ your consideration here that it is a very beautiful community and we have very nice communities surrounding us.  We’re hoping that we consider this Madame Chairperson and make a decision to decline this so that we don’t see any more empty storefronts and deterioration of a lovely community and people who may have to move because they’re uncomfortable in their own backyard.  I thank you for the time and I certainly – my name is Susan Aubrey, I live at Woodcrest at Jacobs Hill.  I would be more than happy to meet with any of you if I can show you the facility and we’ll take some photos and then if we have to deal with the blasting we hope that we’ll be in communication.  Thank you very much I appreciate your time.
Mr. Bob Baker stated I’m also from Woodcrest at Jacobs Hill.  I’d like to emphasize a few things that the previous speakers did a very good job on.  I live for 38 years along this Route 6 corridor.  The last four years at Jacobs Hill, previous to that I lived on Jerome Drive where we waited 25 years for a traffic light.  When we finally got the traffic light you could no longer make a right turn because the Town Center basically was blocked up.  If you wanted to get out you basically had to go to the left towards Peekskill.  If we follow through on this proposal here, as you come down the hill from Jacobs Hill at the traffic light at the bottom, you can get three cars through at a time.  I know you may be able to adjust the traffic light but if you adjust the traffic light you’re going to hold up more traffic on Route 6.  There’s about 70 yards from the traffic light on Jacobs Hill back to the Bear Mountain Parkway exit there.  There’s not a lot of room for a lot of cars once we start adjusting that traffic light.  We also we have six buildings that are vacant in Pike Plaza now.  There’s Hollywood Video, there’s Circuit City, there’s Curry Toyota that are all abandoned along that corridor.  The traffic is choked from Locust Avenue to Lexington Avenue.  If we put this in we’re going to choke it from Conklin Avenue to Lexington Avenue.  We’re going to have an extreme problem getting out of our complex.  Thank you.

Ms. Virginia Bress stated I live at 2201 Jacobs Hill Road.  I’m in one of the two buildings that are the condominiums where we have about 58 families and up the hill there are about 108 other units.  This is a lot of people to be travelling up and down the road where this proposed building is supposed to be.  Some people had said to me, where I live, “we’ll go to the meeting but it’s really a done deal,” and I said “what do you mean?  It can’t be a done deal.”  I’m looking at the public hearing notice from before May 4th and in it in the fourth paragraph is a list of five very important liabilities such as: “potential large impacts on the subject proposed action are as follows: 1) the proposed action may significantly impact existing air quality, ground and surface water quality and quantity, traffic and noise levels and result in a substantial increase in potential for erosion, flooding and drainage problems.”  That’s only the first suggestion that this Board has seen that might come from a completion of this project.  It also says in the second section here that it notes about the wildlife that “there’ll be a removal and destruction of large quantities of vegetation and fauna.”  I look out the back of my unit and all winter I see the deer coming and feeding and it’s one of the most charming sights that I have and just that alone would impact my quality of life.  It also talks about of the large numbers of people that would come, all their problems as a result of that.  Those are all the liabilities.  The fourth one really kind of surprised me because now it’s talking about the cost to us.  I think it’s fine if the developer makes money from this project, that’s great, but meanwhile, as tax payers, you point out that there will be, and it’s not just a guess, but “the proposed action will result in a demand for additional community services such as place, fire, ambulance, sanitation, roadway maintenance and additional demand on the Town’s water supply system.”  I’d like to ask the Board, after I read this I thought this can’t be a done deal because of everything that you’re stating here better than anybody else could put it.  My question to the Board is: what are the advantages of your agreeing to let this proposal go ahead?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded the Board actually at this point does not normally respond.  This is a public hearing for you to express your points-of-view.  At some point the Board will express its own thoughts on the matter. 

Ms. Virginia Bress stated I appreciate that and I appreciate the opportunity to be able to point out my dissatisfaction with the proposed project.  Thank you. 

Ms. Catherine Ocskasy stated and I live in the very first building that you see when you come up from King Buffet, that’s the building I am in and I am facing directly down to where this property is in question.  When I bought this, and incidentally it’s an over 55 community, but we go up to the age of 93 and we have very many.  I represent some of the older ones, not quite to that age but pretty close.  The things when we were being sold the property and since I have been told how hard Linda Puglisi worked to get this for seniors and it’s a beautiful view and I face down the hill.  I’m in the back.  I’m as close as anybody can possibly be to where the blasting is.  I’m not an engineer.  I’m simply a citizen.  I’m looking at the traffic, not Route 6, I don’t care about that, I care but that’s not my concern.  I’m talking about coming up-and-down Jacobs Hill Road.  There’s a little divider to look like a boulevard or whatever.  There’s people come, particularly if we’re coming down the hill, there’s people come in on the left.  They don’t know that that other road is also, that’s a danger.  I had already asked Cortlandt to put a stop sign where they come out of the King Buffet and Dominos because people think because there’s no stop sign that they have the right-of-way.  We have a stop sign at the dialysis center.  The people coming out of the dialysis center have a stop sign but the people from King Buffet and Dominos and I mention Dominos because this is what I’m afraid of, if you were going to be building something, I’m not against building, I like stores in there, that’s one of the attractions of Jacobs Hill is that seniors like myself can just come down the hill in off hours, get right over, you have a choice of Stop and Shop, you have ShopRite, the Town Center and we’re smart enough to stay off the roads weekends.  If we have blasting, now I’m the one who’s going to be affected because believe me I could keep track for the police how many hot roders there are.  The sound coming up to our place is incredible but okay that’s all right.  But, if I have to come to contend with a bunch of young people if this is a sports complex or something that’s going to attract a lot of young people this is not good for us and this is what I’m very concerned about.  They blame seniors for accidents that’s not the truth.  Seniors have probably better driving records than any young person on the road today.  We take our time, we stay off the roads, I sure as heck do if there’s going to be a lot of traffic but if we’re going to have some kind of a sports place that brings a whole bunch of young people, as was mentioned, we already have had one incident in our buildings where young people discovered “hey that’s a nice little off-the-way place, let’s come and hang out in their breezeway at night when all the old people are asleep.”  Anyway, basically I’m concerned.  It’s a lovely place but we’ve already, as you’ve heard, they have to redo our whole buildings.  I have all kinds of cracks in my building and the developer is nice enough to fix it, he’s going to come and fix my unit but what’s the blasting going to do to us?  Am I going to shake?  I don’t know the amount of blasting that I understood you’re going to do.  How many months is it going to take?  Am I going to have – well I can’t get whiter hair but I can loose it.  I just want to make my opinion heard.  Thank you.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated something’s been repeated several times and I think it’s just an unfortunate misconception based upon the name of this applicant it has “Sport Realty” in it.  This application has nothing to do with a sports facility, a sporting complex, nothing whatsoever.  It’s simply for retail on the first floor, office use on the second floor.  If anyone plans to speak about a concern of some sporting facility with youths congregating there’s nothing like that in this application.  It’s just the name of the applicant, it happens to have the name “sport” in it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who wishes to be heard?

Ms. Jennifer Rench stated I reside at 1301 Jacobs Hill Road.  My concern is that right now the Environmental Protection Agency is stating that the levels of radon is high in the area, in our neighborhood.  Once the blasting will start, obviously the radon will increase and it’s a big concern to us here. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody on the Board at this point who wishes to make statements regarding this application?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I had a couple of comments that I thought the applicant should look further into after in progressing from the DEIS stage and I think they’re a little bit related: 1) is the amount of steep slopes disturbance that’s on the proposal which is something like 42,000 square feet of proposed steep slope disturbance.  There’s a brief statement in the DEIS that talks about how this is purportedly the least amount to allow a reasonable use of the property but it’s just sort of those self-serving statements without any real analysis having been done and nothing that I don’t think would satisfy the Steep Slopes Ordinance.  Something we talked about at the work session that maybe ought to be considered is moving the buildings further towards Route 6 trying to use the flatter part that would end up not having the parking in front of the first building, although that’s a comment that I know the County has made that they would recommend pushing the front building closer and not having the parking in front, but that might be a way to reduce the slopes impact.  Obviously another way to reduce the footprint of the buildings themselves to reduce the disturbance but I think it’s a real issue on the site, there’s a tremendous amount of disturbance that’s being proposed and if we’re going to be consistent in applying that Ordinance as we’ve been doing recently I think we’ve got to take a very close look at that.  Obviously the blasting is going to need to be addressed very carefully.  It’s the subject of most of these comments and always raises concerns and we’ve got some very specific concerns that I think need to be addressed with that.  Just to speak to some of the comments that were made by the public, while the presence of vacant stores can be unfortunate it’s not really within the purview of this Board to, in a sense, have proof that a project will be an economic success or will have tenants for 10 years or what have you.  The reality is people have the right within, other than causing certain adverse impacts, developers put in stores and sometimes they’re successful and sometimes they’re not but it’s not really for us to survey an area and decide whether there’s any need for any additional retail use or office use or what have you.  Those are my comments at this stage. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just to comment based upon what one of the speaker’s said, when you do the FEIS I think you should, I know in your DEIS talking about radon, you talk in generalities about radon levels in residential areas so to some extent you have information that’s specific to the property and if you can also have a discussion about the potential impact that blasting may have on increasing radon levels.  I’d like to see that in the FEIS.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other members of the Board?

Ms. Susan Todd stated in the FEIS I would like to see an alternative that required no blasting at all and also the first gentleman who spoke who talked about the water and drainage issues, I think that you’re going to need to have partners with the State, Transportation and whoever controls Route 6 from the get-go and know that you will be able to do the extra drainage that’s necessary to keep that from becoming a problem.  I know all over Cortlandt water flows on rocks, as I look at my basement, the water flows, there’s a big rock there and the water flows right in on it so I’m sure that happens underground as well and we have testimony from this first gentleman about what that’s been like for him.  I agree with what Ivan said about moving the buildings closer.  I think it’s sad that we have so many empty, vacant stores and somebody still wants to build a new store, I’d much rather see somebody renovate one of the existing stores and fix that up than build something brand new but again it’s the developer’s right to propose an application and it’s our job to make sure that it will be as good as possible.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we are in receipt of your petition with the 8 points on it which include the blasting so we appreciate that.  I know that when Jacobs Hill was built and we were approving and going through the review process and approval a number of years ago, blasting was an issue then from the people on Society Hill adjoining it up in the back and even though we were reassured by the developer of Jacobs Hill about all the protective measures and the mitigation measures, there was an impact on at least one or two of the buildings.  I believe the main wall at the community room at Society Hill and then one of the buildings of the condos were and they were impacted.  That is a major concern of mine also.  I would prefer that there be no blasting if possible or at least as Susan said an alternative plan.  While I agree with somewhat with what Ivan and Susan are saying about the slopes impact because of the slopes law, when I saw the County’s the streetscape alternative, and I don’t know if this is in the FEIS, I don’t think it is, moving the front building forward – at first glance, and up until this point, I still do not like it.  I know it puts the parking behind and reduces the slopes impact but it looks like the building is too overpowering, too close to the road, the sidewalk I think when Mr. Buroughs from the County was talking about was setting up a streetscape, pedestrian-friendly with sidewalks but I’m afraid it’s an open invitation to a graffiti wall there in the front and I think it just kind of moves from the exurban to the urbanization of that block and I don’t particularly like it.  I hope there could be another way to do this.  On the traffic impacts, which is a major concern as we all know along the Route 6 corridor, the gentleman who spoke about – I know I’ve tried to come in-and-out above Dominos Pizza, I believe that’s where the dialysis center is where there is a stop sign, but the lower tier does not have and I’ve experienced those cars coming out of Dominos and I believe the King Buffet where they don’t stop, maybe they don’t realize there’s housing and people coming down that road – that would all have to be mitigated and explained further in the FEIS which would be the next step after this, the next book on this.  You do cover the blasting and rock removal, again you go back under the summary executives pages 1-4 and 1-3 I believe, but I would like to see a better plan on the rock removal and all kinds of pre-blasting conditions.  Tree impacts: I know when the CAC visited this site at the site visit, and we were up there at the Hersh site a number of years ago as we were at the Jacobs Hill before that was built, there was a question to some of the larger specimen trees having to come down and that’s a concern and I believe the CAC may have weighed in on that initially.  Those are my concerns and I appreciate the comments of the residents.
Mr. John Bernard stated one thing I’d like to get clarified is to what damages are occurring to the buildings at Jacobs Hill.  It sounds like from what we’ve heard that there are some settlement cracks.  I don’t know if that’s the only problems that are happening but we need to really assess what it is, what kinds of damages are occurring to those buildings.  It may indicate an incorrect understanding of the rock structure underneath and that would very much impact any development there at Hersh Plaza.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s very clear that from the concerns expressed by the area residents and members of the Board that we will need to adjourn the hearing and take a look at some of these issues that have been raised regarding a number of things especially the blasting and the drainage and those kinds of concerns.  There are a number of very valuable and interesting suggestions to the applicant that were made by the County Planning Department back in early May.  There is a about four or five page letter detailing, being very specific about things that the applicant could do to reduce the negative impacts on this community and I particularly am taken with some of them.  One of the things that we brought up here for example that has been mentioned by a couple of people is that there are no sidewalks in your proposed concern and you have people coming to buy things from retail, you have offices that are going to be there and people might need to walk along sidewalks so that they will be transporting themselves fairly safely.  There are no sidewalks proposed and certainly the County thinks that you ought to take a look at that.  They also seem to agree that, although Bob doesn’t like it, that the building should have more prominence that you should reduce these very high walls, these retaining walls because they have a visual impact that’s sort of overpowering.  Clearly, those are things that they think you should look at.  I do believe that somebody suggested that you start looking at ways to do more sustainable kind of design, more green designs and things like that.  You guys have seen that letter I’m sure, right?

Mr. Fred Wells responded yes we have a copy of the County letter.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you feel that any of these suggestions were things that you could consider?

Mr. Fred Wells responded we did look at the concerns.  A lot of it had to do with pedestrian accessibility and sidewalks, and certainly sidewalks are something we can look at a little further.  We do have connections out to Jacobs Hill and the sidewalk across the street.  We felt that rather duplicate the sidewalk on both sides of the street, if we could make a connection to that and improve that sidewalk on the west side, that’s part of our proposal and we felt that was appropriate but we’ll take another look at that.  As far as moving the building, we’ve looked at it a little bit.  There are pros and cons to it but primarily zoning becomes an issue because we don’t have much room to play with.  The County’s graphic actually shows the building on the State right-of-way which obviously cannot be done.  Our site is a little bit awkward in shape as you can see from the graphic.  The property line in front is actually curved.  That curved line below the parking lot is the property line, so the right-of-way line is not a straight line we have a curved – and we have buffer requirements which we are meeting and as well as a building setback which we are very close to what the minimum setback is so we really would a zoning action in order to move the building much from where it’s located right now.  That’s a problem obviously for the plan.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated with respect to blasting for example, I’ve never been a big proponent of it and that tends to be one of the more negative things that I view in a project when you have to blast and here in particular, you’re going down having 18 feet for the rear elevation which shows that you have to go down that far to put the pads in, I don’t know that people aren’t going to be affected beyond 400 feet which is the parameter that is generally established.  We’re going to look at all the houses, the foundations, for 400 feet.  The affect, especially when you’re talking about blasting in rock and other people’s homes are built along a ridge or a rock that moves in both directions for quite some distance, when you start blasting it seems to me that you really have to take into account that the reverberations will carry through quite a bit further than 400 feet many times.  I’m not particularly fond of that 400 feet parameter and I’d like to know, they were asking about guarantees, obviously we can’t guarantee that someone’s home won’t be impacted but perhaps you need to expand that radius further out than 400 feet and make sure that you take  a look at people’s foundations and side walls to make sure that if something does develop after blasting, let’s say we get to blasting that those people won’t be suffering hardships trying to repair the damage that the applicant created.

Mr. Fred Wells stated we can look further at the blasting and blasting Permit as required by the Town and typically we outline the minimum provisions that would be need to be in that plan for the Town’s review when we get to that point so we can take a look at that further.  I’m not prepared to get into details here but I think we need to try and address those concerns for you in the final EIS.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for sure because I think that seems to be a major concern that alone with the water problems that have developed in the interim with the construction.

Mr. Fred Wells stated may I ask Madame Chairwoman, what is the purpose of leaving the hearing open because we can’t really prepare an EIS to respond to the questions in any detail without…

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded the purpose would be just to be sure that we’ve covered as many as the basis as we can.  We heard things here tonight I think we might want to have staff take a look at some additional things and make sure that the hearings are still open so that the people can comment on these findings.  I would be for at least another session amendable to leaving the hearing open and I think many of the Board members might.  I don’t know for sure. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my own personal view is that if the public has been heard from that under SEQRA the purpose of the DEIS public hearing has been served and we should close that hearing, keep the hearing on the application open and let the applicant go back and address the issues because the only way legally he can address the issues under SEQRA is to do it in an FEIS.  They can’t come back and try to fix everything right now while we’re holding the hearing under the DEIS that doesn’t have the stuff in there.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated how does staff fell about it?  I want there to be an opportunity for people to hear if are additional concerns that need to be addressed and respond to them.  If you feel that you’ve got everything under control that might put…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that’s why we have a hearing on the FEIS almost always on this Board.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated exactly.  Ivan’s right.

Mr. Robert Foley stated this hearing the people are addressing what they’ve seen in the current DEIS I don’t even know if they’ve seen the County letter which Loretta’s referred to and the plan to move the building forward.  I would rather keep the hearing open and urge the community leaders from the condo areas to look at the new information and have the opportunity to comment on it.  I would also like to see at some stage if we keep the hearing open for the next hearing or certainly in the FEIS, perhaps a version of what you feel, the applicant feels as far as less impact on the slopes in moving the building but not right on the road or as you say now in the right-of-way.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated except that’s not in the DEIS so I don’t see how in a hearing on a DEIS, if we continue that until next month, the public can comment on something that’s not in the DEIS.  It’s a hearing under SEQRA on the DEIS.  If something’s not in there they can’t really comment on something that may end up being in the FEIS in response to comments.  The statute contemplates that they address the comments by preparing an FEIS that would incorporate the public’s comments and the Board’s comments and the County’s comments or what have you and then people can comment on that, otherwise, for people to stand up now and comment on something that’s not even in the document doesn’t really seem like a very efficient way to try to proceed.  I don’t know how they would comment.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just to clarify though, the FEIS which follows the DEIS does involve a public comment so we’re not -- by closing hearing on the DEIS we’re not closing the public hearing on the process.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated right.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think I have to agree with Ivan, we’ve had now two public hearings.  I understand the last one we did not have a full representation from the neighbors.  I think this time, clearly based upon the show of hands earlier on that we’ve had a nice representation of the public this evening and the issues that were raised were important issues and what will now happen is the applicant will go back and specifically address the comments that were raised this evening as well as what was raised at the last meeting and address those in the final document, this Final Environmental Impact Statement document.  We will then, as staff has said, have a public hearing on that so people can come back, see if they have addressed it to the satisfaction of the public as well as the satisfaction of this Board and the staff as well.  I would agree with Ivan that we will keep the public hearing open on the application.  We’re not closing that because things may change on exactly what they want to build and where they want to build it but at least they can go back and start addressing very specific issues that were raised here this evening and at the previous meeting as well.  Let me make a motion, so I move that we close the public hearing on the draft Environmental Impact Statement so those issues that were raised can be addressed but that we keep the public hearing open on the application of specifically what they would like to have built on this property.
Mr. John Klarl stated which would include site plan approval, Wetland, Steep Slopes, and Tree Removal Permits.

Seconded, with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked John do we need to set a specific comment period or does the statute…

Mr. John Klarl responded as a statute.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated as part of the statute. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated for the record there’s a 10-day comment period if people wish to, in writing, submit some additional comments about the DEIS you’re certainly allowed to do so and we would welcome that. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked when would that 10-day period end at this point?  We’re talking as tomorrow begins as day one?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded June 11th it ends.  Comments are also encouraged by e-mail also.

Mr. Fred Wells asked will staff have comments as well?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded of course.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words I heard the applause there to close the hearing, so I would urge for anyone who has not looked at the document and certainly the new material and be prepared for whenever the next public hearing is.

PB 1-07      b.
Public Hearing: Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of  a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road, as shown on a  drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary Plat,  Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates”, and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan”, latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there is a member and our attorney who are recusing themselves, John Bernard and John Klarl.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m sorry Madame Chairperson before you begin could you either enlarge it?  I don’t think you can make it darker but if you could enlarge it a little bit.  A little smaller then drag it out to the left.  Right there, it’s better for me. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated before you get started if there’s anybody sitting in the audience who is here for the Kirquel matter, they have asked to be adjourned until the next meeting so we will not be doing that.  You can stay if you want but there would really be no reason to because this is not a public hearing.  You can come back next month.  They are scheduled to be on July 7th.  

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated we represent the applicant and the subdivision project.  I’m joined this evening by Ralph Mastromonaco the project engineer and Fred Wells from Tim Miller Associates the project planner and environmental consultant.  We’re here tonight for the continuation of the public hearing.  We do hope to hear from your Board and your Board’s staff, your comments, planning, environmental, technical on this application.  This hearing has been open for quite some time while we addressed and resolved various issues regarding Upland Lane.  Your Board’s council Mr. Lodes confirmed our position that Mr. Giordano has the right to utilize and improve Upland Lane for this application.  In response to a question that came up at the last meeting, we did submit a letter confirming that this application does not propose any repaving on the Streisfeld-leitner property.  Mr. Lodes raised a question regarding his triangular portion of the – this is an existing portion of Upland Lane that currently extents onto the Streisfeld-leitner property and Mr. Lodes asked at the last meeting to confirm whether we were in fact proposing to pave this portion.  The prior road improvement plan does show that work to be done in response to the question we’ve revised the plan and I stand here tonight confirming that all work members of Mr. Giordano will take place in the right-of-way.  That question should also be put to rest.  We are not proposing any work on that property.  The repaving was initially proposed, again this currently extents onto the property so all we were doing was repaving what already exists but to avoid any further confusion about this issue we decided to eliminate that repaving and keep all of our work within the right-of-way.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated what currently exists is gravel.

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded I think that portion is paved.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it is paved, okay.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated I know there were some questions at the work session about whether or not a new survey is required.  We don’t think one is.  This is not a question or dispute rather as to the location of the property lines or the location of the right-of-way, this is a question really of where is the pavement going and again I think we’ve answered that, the pavement will stay wholly within the right-of-way.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I had a question about the survey.  There appears to be given the letters going back-and-forth, some sense that wants -- Mrs. Whalen who is the attorney for the Laner’s wants to see a survey and you guys have said that you could produce one but now you don’t want to because you’ve actually decided not to use the Streisfeld-leitner property for any part of that road.  I’m concerned, is there a survey that we should be taking a look at, at all?

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded we don’t need to do is a new survey Madame Chair.  This plan is based on a field survey that was prepared by a surveyor at Ralph Mastromonaco’s office and to the extent there are any questions about that survey and that certification, Mr. Mastromonaco can address that.  This is based on an existing survey.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated our council Karl Lodes is here tonight and we put this question to him, do we need to have a survey?  Do we need to see a survey?  I would like for him to reply to that question.

Mr. Karl Lodes responded in my opinion, the plan that you’ve submitted to me was based on what you represented to be a field survey which was then certified by a member of Mr. Mastromonaco’s office.
Mr. Brad Schwartz responded that’s correct.

Mr. Karl Lodes stated to me that is satisfactory and satisfactory to the Board unless the attorney for the Laner’s has some question about that plan.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated I certainly concur with that and we haven’t been provided any contrary survey or any other documentation that conflicts with what we’ve provided.

Mr. Karl Lodes stated I would agree.  I’ve had nothing from Ms. Whalen to challenge that on the basis of another survey by certified surveyor.

Ms. Joann Whalen stated when we were at the last session the issue of the right-of-way was discussed you made a determination.  At that time you advised the applicants that you wanted to see a survey and/or other documentary evidence that would address the easement issue with the Streisfeld-leitner property as it is on Upland Lane and Mount Airy Road.  The attorney at that time, Mr. Steinmetz said that he would provide a survey and he would provide certification from the title company which would represent their position with regard to the easement and the Streisfeld-leitner property.  When I got the letter, and you got a letter from council, they said we’re on their property, we see it but we have no documentation.  I don’t know, as I stand here, nor does the Board how we can make that legal determination on this basis without the survey.  I don’t know what they’re saying.  The Streisfeld-leitner’s don’t have a survey and they’re not here this evening so I don’t have them.  I got his letter on Friday of the Holiday weekend and you directed to get that information.  They said they would produce it.  We do not have a certified survey here.  We have a survey from an engineer.  It may well be fine but that’s not what you asked for and we can’t just accept it on a say-so.  We would like our title company to review their survey, have our engineers review their survey and have our survey review their survey so that everyone is on the same plane with regard to this right-of-way and easement issue and that’s where the Laner’s stand on that issue.  You directed it, they said they would produce it, now they’re not going to produce it and we want to play a fair game.  If you’re going to make the representations you’re going to do something, you should have to do it and that’s the position of the Laner’s.

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded just to be clear we did provide the documentation that was requested.  We provided the floor plan which surveys it shows the encroachment on the Streisfeld-leitner property what currently exists and we showed the after plan which shows that we’re no longer going to pave this triangular portion.  Again, this plan is based on a field survey.  We wouldn’t know that the road currently extents onto the Streisfeld-leitner property but for the survey prepared by a surveyor at Mr. Mastromonaco’s office.  This plan which surveys and delineates the property boundary and the boundary of the right-of-way suffices to answer the question that was posed by Mr. Lodes.

Ms. Susan Todd asked it doesn’t boil down to the title company?  Does the title company have to guarantee the survey?

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded the title company does not need to guarantee the survey Ms. Todd.  If we were proposing to pave that portion of the property then perhaps this title company would get involved into whether or not we have an easement right over that property but since we’re proposing to stay entirely within the right-of-way and the title company has already opined that we have the right to an easement right within the Upland Lane right-of-way.  It’s our position, as Mr. Lodes has confirmed that we have the right to confirm it.  So I don’t think the title company needs to confirm the accuracy of the survey.  Ralph has something to add.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated to avoid any confusion, when that road needs to be constructed or improved the edges, the right-of-way, the actual property lines would be staked out by the surveyor so that there would be in the field there would be no way of going onto somebody else’s property.

Ms. Joann Whalen stated that doesn’t tell us anything.  The statements that were just made, it’ll be staked out at the time that it’s going to happen.  It should be staked out now so that we know what they’re talking about.  The Streisfeld-leitner property is on Mount Airy Road, it’s also on Upland so what they’re proposing, if I’m correct now, is that they’re going to come out straight is what they want to do.  That opens up a whole other can of worms with regard to access and sight on that lane but we don’t have any real boundaries from them as to what’s going on but more importantly the survey was directed to be produced.  We want our engineers to look at this, make sure the Streisfeld-leitner property is in fact not being affected and then go from there.  We can’t do it if we don’t have it.  We have it on a say-so we’re going to make a move.  We don’t even know how far the original property was affected on Streisfeld-leitner because we weren’t given that information from them.  We’re requesting that all they do is to do what you directed them to do originally and give us the documentation so that we can have our people surveyor’s engineers, title company, etc go over.  The title company has only guaranteed ingress and egress.  They haven’t guaranteed anything else as far as I know, that’s why we’ve made this request which we are following what the Board had directed.
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated just to clarify we did submit this map to the Board some time ago.  It’s actually originally dated May 16th, 2008 and this is a complete survey, a very detailed survey of Upland Road.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked who was the surveyor there?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded there are two different certifications, one is on the map which is my certification because the surveyor worked for me, the surveyor in my office is Scott Grey, he’s a licensed surveyor.  If we were asked to provide a signed or a boundary survey, a property survey then that certification would have been done by Mr. Grey but since we were only asked to site survey which is locate pavement, mailboxes, trees then that falls under my certification which is as an engineer.  We were not asked to do anything more.  We did what we were asked to do. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked my question would be then is there some reason to object to the survey, the kind that would be signed by your surveyor?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded as long as this process proceeds without delaying for that reason we have no problem producing a surveyor certification on this map as well.  I can see what the lawyers want to do sometimes “oh you know you didn’t do this so come back six months from now.”  Anything they can do to delay us would be something that they’re trying to do.  I’ll have my surveyor look at this and I’m sure that in the next couple of weeks, for the next meeting we can resubmit with his blessing. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would hope that you could do whatever you could do to help move this forward.  If a survey exists and it’s done by a qualified surveyor we just need to look at it so we can say yay or nay and move on.  There’s no sense in getting our feet bogged down in that one thing.  

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I’m just saying at the moment I would hope you would just consider it a non issue at the moment.  We can talk about something else let’s say.  We’ll be happy to provide whatever information this Board needs to move this process along.  Nothing will change.  It will be the same map.
Ms. Joann Whalen stated there’s no boundary survey.  We have no boundaries.  They’re not staked out.  He just said there’s no boundary survey on that survey.  That survey didn’t show the Streisfeld-leitner problem, that’s…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it certainly did.  That’s how we found out about it. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated no we found out about it because we had our issue with the easement and the right-of-way but they have a survey that doesn’t have the boundaries.  They haven’t staked out anything and so that’s why we need the survey so everybody knows what we’re talking about.  We’re not trying to delay them, we’re trying to do what you requested and have them do what you requested them to do so that everybody can be on the same plane and get the project going or not going, make decisions one way or the other.  We want to dot the i’s and cross the t’s and that’s why we’re here so we want to see this survey and let them certify it, you directed it.  I don’t see why we should be the bad guys in the position.  We want to see it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can’t that move on a parallel path and can we start addressing some of the other issues that some of the people have on the Lane then?

Ms. Joann Whalen responded well that’s up to you as to whether you want to go forward.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s a public hearing.  We can’t get bogged down on one issue.  Certainly we all get the information that was requested just to cross the t’s and dot the i’s as you said.  What are the other issues you said so we can move on, so what’s the moving on?

Ms. Joann Whalen responded we have people that want to comment on it.  There’s a myriad of Town Laws that need to be addressed as to whether or not they’re appropriate.  You have tree issues per section 280 on all the tree preservation issues.  You’ve got a dead-end up at the top where you’ve got no turnaround.  You’ve got a 1,200 foot road where your Town Law says that you have to have 500 feet unless there’s an exceptional circumstance.  I’ll get my pad.  We have a myriad of places to go before we get going. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated okay, let’s do it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are we going to have some comments made by…

Ms. Ellen Irvine stated I live at 7 Upland Lane.  This might sound really stupid but I don’t quite understand the whole thing like the right-of-way so if Mr. Giordano has the right-of-way to improve the Lane by making it bigger, do I in fact have the right-of-way to say “I don’t like it bigger, I want to make it smaller?”  I just don’t understand that.  Can somebody tell me what that means?

Mr. Karl Lodes responded I dealt with this – each person has a right to use the right-of-way along that right-of-way but they can use it within the confines. 

Ms. Ellen Irvine asked so any of us can use it the way we want to use it then?

Mr. Karl Lodes responded as long as it doesn’t interfere with the other person’s right-of-way or with the plan that’s adopted by this Board, yes. 

Ms. Ellen Irvine stated well if the plan’s adopted by the Board and I still have the right-of-way because I still live on the Lane and Mr. Giordano is not going to live on the Lane then if – it’s a far flung thing. If I have to make the lane smaller to make it more quaint again then technically I could do that if I had the money?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess you could.  You have to have a project to come before the Board.

Mr. Ivan Kline responded his point is that would be then interfering what would have been found to have been Mr. Giordano’s proper use of the right-of-way.  I understand what you’re saying and I’m a little troubled by the result but I think conceptually his ability to essentially expand doesn’t interfere with your present right-of-way.  It doesn’t stop you from going in or out as you are presently doing or as you might want to hereafter but to converse wouldn’t be true, if you were to narrow it to four feet because you use a scooter that would interfere with those who like to drive a car up and down the road. 
Ms. Ellen Irvine stated it is ultimately going to interfere with trees on my property.  Are those trees going to be replaced that he takes down?  I’m at 7 Upland Lane.  I’m kind of at the 20 foot mark, I think.  I’m right beside the Streisfeld-leitner property.  I also have decorative grasses.  There’s issues that are there that I have put money into and I’ve taken care of and it just doesn’t seem fair to me that somebody can come in that’s not even going to live there and just for his own wealth, for a lack of a better word, can bulldoze it.  I just don’t understand it.  I’ve been thinking about it ever since we’ve been coming to these meetings and that’s my question.  I never raised it before but I’m raising it now.
Mr. Brad Schwartz stated there are no trees being proposed to come down on private property.  Any trees being proposed to be removed again open the right-of-way and that’s what this application is going to be about.  Water improvements, tree removal, paving, does your Board deems reasonable and acceptable throughout this project to allow for safe and suitable access to the property.  There are no trees being removed off of anyone’s private property.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated and of course this plan like any other application will be reviewed by the Town’s tree arborist.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated along those lines we need to set up that process because some of the comments from the neighbors have been certain representations that trees will be preserved they have an arborist that questions whether those trees will actually be able to survive the widening of the Lane.  We have to refer this to our arborist, receive the funds and have them do the work.  We haven’t done that yet.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated also I wouldn’t limit it to just trees because Ms. Irvine was talking about ornamental grasses and gardens and things like that.  That’s a lot of time.  It’s a lot of effort.  I think they should be compensated plus for anything that they’ve planted in the path of the bulldozers.

Mr. Frank Marrone stated I’m a resident of 6 Upland Lane and I’ve been there for 25 years.  In that 25 years neither I nor any of the other 11 residents of the Lane have felt any overpowering need to improve the Lane in the way that the developer would like to improve the Lane.  In fact, I question the use of the word “improve” the Lane.  No where in the dictionary does it say that widening the Lane improves the Lane.  How, I would like to know, does the widening of the Lane improve the Lane.  As it stands now, anyone who lives in that Lane can get in-and-out of that Lane, no problem.  As far as safety goes, which is mentioned in the applicant’s – I’ve been there 25 years, there have been let’s see, no accidents, how does widening the Lane improve no accidents.  Sight lines: widening the Lane is not the only way to address sight lines as the applicant claims.  There’s a problem with sight lines cut a tree down on the right-of-way don’t necessarily widen the road.  No where have I seen where widening equals improvement.  All widening does is make that Lane more attractive to potential buyers of the property being developed by the developer who has never been a resident of that Lane, never plans to be a resident of that Lane.  25 years I’ve been there, the Lane has functioned fine.  Can anyone give me one reason why somebody coming in chopping down those trees, widening that Lane improves the Lane?  Is there any correlation between the two that someone could point out to me?  Can you?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I should point out that we are doing this work voluntarily.  There’s no requirement for us to do this.  Mr. Giordano is paying for this work and he’s trying to do it in a way that the neighbors are happy with it.  If you can convince this Board that we can develop our property without improving your roadway we would take that under consideration. 
Mr. Frank Marrone asked can anyone tell me why he has to do that?  It seems to me that in order to develop the property to the degree they want to entails changing the nature of that Lane which has been stet for over 50 or 60 years and every resident on that Lane loves the Lane as is then perhaps that’s the wrong development in the wrong place at the wrong time and rather than change the Lane, change the development.  Maybe it doesn’t need six houses.  Can anyone – you’ve yet to telling me how widening it improves it.  All you’ve said was you were volunteering to do that.  Just show me improving equals widening.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded in general just in terms of safety, it appears to me that there’s portions of that road that would be nearly impassible in bad weather.  There are some safety issues on that roadway and I think that a roadway that tailors down to about 10 feet in some places in poor weather would be a safety problem, even for the people that live way beyond Mr. Marrone’s house but there are people that live way down that road.  I think there have to have been issues that we’re not hearing about where there are snowstorms or things like that where they have to get private parties in to plow that road.  I believe that the improvement, even though it’s a technical term, is that the safety would be improved and I think that’s why we’re here.  We’re here to improve the safety for, not only ourselves, but for the new homes on Mr. Giordano’s property.  That is one – I’m not going to go through all of the improvements but that’s one improvement. 
Mr. Frank Marrone asked again I will ask the question how do you improve on zero accidents?
Mr. Ivan Kline stated sir I think his point in part is, and I’m not saying that this justifies what he’s trying to do, is that if you’re going to add five homes it’s just that much more vehicle usage of the road, the road may no longer be suitable for the number of cars that would be going up-and-down and I understand what your response is to that and we don’t need to keep going back-and-forth on that right now.  If one started with the assumption that there would be five additional homes one might conclude that the road is inadequate, it can’t handle that because a road that’s only so wide can only take so many cars.  You wouldn’t put 100 houses on a 10 foot wide road. 

Mr. Frank Marrone stated we’re not talking about 100 houses. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I understand that.

Mr. Frank Marrone stated the additional five cars would generate – allow me to go to my notes, I think there’s something called the Adler report, it’s paid for by the developer, yes?  The Adler report says and I quote “the proposed subdivision will add a minimal volume of traffic to the local roadway system and that these trips will not have an impressionable impact on area traffic operation conditions.”  If that’s the case…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but you said there’s seven homes on Upland?

Mr. Frank Marrone responded there are 11, but the Adler report says that the addition of these new houses is going to have a minimum volume of traffic.  That being the case why does the road need to be changed.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated in fairness I think the Adler report’s referring to Mount Airy Road and other surrounding roads in the area, not specifically the right-of-way that we’re talking about. 

Mr. Frank Marrone stated it doesn’t say that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand but typically a traffic report is dealing with, in general, the impact on the area. 

Mr. Frank Marrone stated there’s some other issues that widening the Lane brings up that I’d like to discuss.  There’s a stream at the end of that Lane.  The road is about 10 feet wide in that stream and there’s a culvert that cuts under that stream in order for the water to flow.  That culvert periodically gets clogged.  It has to be cleared out.  One can clear it out without much expense at 10 feet by reaching in 5 feet on the side and we can clear it out.  When that road expands, how are we going to clear that culvert out each time it clogs?  Who’s going to pay for that?  Who’s going to bear that financial burden?  I don’t think Mr. Giordano’s going to be around to write a check for that.  It’s going to fall on us, that widened road is going to be a financial burden to keep that culvert clean.  That’s one issue.  We’ve maintained that road, privately, for over 50 years.  We have to pay and we pay thousands of dollars over the years to keep that road paved and passable.  Widening the road just increases the surface area that we’re going to have to pay to keep passable.  Who’s going to fit that financial burden?  The residents, not the developer, he’s gone.  There’s going to be 330 feet of cleared foliage for better visibility at the end of the Lane.  That stuff grows back doesn’t it?  Who’s going to have to pay to keep that clear?  The residents, again the financial burden falls to us not the developer.  These are considerations that haven’t been addressed yet and we would really like them addressed and we would still at some point like to know why improved equals wide.

Mr. John Neblo stated from 23 Upland Lane.  I assumed that the developer was going to in fact address some of the objections that had been – the engineering reports that have been filed by me and the rest of the Laners’ in February.  I don’t know if the Board has in front of it, we can go step-by-step through the engineering reports if you’d like but I had presumed that in fact Mr. Giordano would take a crack at that first and that was going to be the next step in this hearing.  On February 18th I submitted a letter about 6, 7, 8 pages long and there are two accompanying engineering reports with about 25 or 30 bullet points associated with them.  It’s basically a critique of the work done by the applicant’s engineers.  If it pleases the Board we can go through it or is this all a matter of record already that you’ve reflected on and considered. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m certain that we continue to reflect on things that we have.  Some of us will have to read individual reports two or three times because so much is coming in and there’ll be something that we want to extract for further use down the line but at the same time, if you have specific things and again we don’t need an 8 page citation, but if you have certain specific things that you’d like to highlight here right now, please do so. 

Mr. John Neblo stated again I don’t want to burden the Board or drag this out in front of everybody.  Rather, perhaps just a quick highlight then. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked your letter was dated when?

Mr. John Neblo responded the 28th.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated for the record it’s the letter dated the 19th.  Attached to that is a letter dated February 18th from Hydro Environmental Solutions?

Mr. John Neblo responded precisely.  Attached to the Hydro Environmental Solutions letter is another engineer’s report the Reddick Associates letter.  These two letters I think are critical.  Again, you’ll have to forgive the passion of myself and some of my colleagues.  These are our homes so we are keenly interested and I don’t want to burden the Board but if you could in your leisure between now and the next meeting, pay particular attention to the specifics of the Reddick letter.  There are about 25 separate bullet points where they call into question some of the findings and some of the preparatory work that was done by the applicant in connection with this application.  The adequacy of the engineering studies, we can go specifically, again if you’d like but the crux of it is inadequate water runoff and water quality testing, specifically the Reddick letter page 5 section 3 paragraph a) waste water, also site specific storm water testing as recommended by the Reddick engineering report, storm water management is called into question by the engineers report.  I’m just highlighting this for the record.  We can’t go through this practically in time.  I assumed that, again, this would have been either reviewed, it was submitted in February or that Mr. Giordano himself would have presumably addressed some of the questions. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated in fairness, we had this threshold issue that we had to address in terms of the right-of-way so we can go back and look at your correspondence.

Mr. John Neblo stated with all due deference to the Board, rather again, I’m new to this, I just assumed that today’s meeting, that Mr. Giordano and his engineers would have addressed some of these things.  So forgive me for not being better prepared.  I guess the other point to note is that the proposed roadway what Mr. Giordano – I presume euphemistically calls the driveway, he calls it a driveway in spite of the fact that it’s going to be 20 feet wide and 1,200 feet long, if my math is correct that 24,000 square feet of hardscaping so quite some driveway.  In any case, that driveway runs along the length, literally right down my property line and I do have a question as to how that can possibly be constructed without trespassing on our property.  I don’t know how he could in fact pave unless the roadway isn’t moved.  That’s a question that’s addressed in my letter, you may note, this would be on page 3 of my letter.  There’s no setback whatsoever onto his property.  He builds the road literally inches from the property line between 23 Upland Lane and his property, no setback whatsoever, so again for your consideration.  In addition to that of course there’s the – it’s all here.  Is that sufficient, having drawn your attention to the letter of the 19th and the supporting engineering data, can we rely on the fact that it’ll be given careful consideration?  I can certainly provide more data in support of it.  I can provide the engineer who poses the questions.  I can provide photographic evidence of water runoff issues.  I’ve got some great winter photos of water cascading and then turning into ice, whatever the Board desires.  Is it your expectation that the public hearing will not terminate today so we’ll have…in that case I’ll happily sit down and move this along.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it would be very helpful to the Board and for people who are going to have to read these minutes would be your specific statement about a concern or an issue and some kind of explication of it and then we move to the next item and then you say what the problem or the concern or the issue is and you again highlight bullet point kind of thing, kind of concisely so that anybody who needs to read this material has a sense of exactly what the problem or issue or concern is.  It’s very difficult to do it the way you’re doing it and then get some real – if you hadn’t been here you wouldn’t really follow that.

Mr. John Neblo stated then in short it would be our position that Mr. Giordano has failed to meet some State requirements with respect to testing that are required by State Law.  I’ll put a supplementary letter in the file in the next couple of days that shortens this, hits the highlights for you but our engineers seem to think that he’s not complied with State Law in respect of some of the testing done and then we have some questions for Mr. Mastromonaco in respect to why he changed his views from one letter to the next on a number of different items but again, that can be detailed in very brief form in a supplemental letter. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I would think that by the next meeting, Mr. Giordano or his person would have responded at least to the major points of this gentleman’s February questions.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated on behalf of the Croton Arboretum.  Before I launch into the Arboretum’s issue I don’t want to leave the concerns of the Laner’s and what I would like to suggest for two reasons: first of all the Board has not been able to address the many environmental, technical and engineering issues because the complications over the legal status of the right-of-way had to be first resolved but in the meantime not only have the Arboretum and the Upland Laner’s brought up many concerns but they’ve gone the distance to hire an engineer, actually two engineers, a hydro-geologist, an arborist and several other technical consultants and what I would like to suggest to your Board Madame Chairman is that the forum to air these is to require a full EIS.  It’s many, many too many points to burden the Board with or to burden staff with and I agree with John Neblo that the applicant should have to respond to all of these points, point-by-point.  On behalf of the Arboretum like to thank the Laner’s in investing resources in hiring these consultants partly because having credentialed professionals restate your concerns lends added credence to them and as John has pointed out there are more than 25 points that the applicant’s consultants have raised and need to be addressed by the applicant’s consultants.  Moving on to the Arboretum’s concerns and they are mercifully short.  We have the same concerns in June of 2010 that we had back in 2007 when this project came to our attention and those very specifically are: the changes in water quantity and quality that will negatively impact a large wetland on the Arboretum property as a result of this development.  We share many of the concerns of the Upland Laner’s have raised specifically with storm water management, the road drainage, the massive clearing of the forest on the site and the lack of site-specific testing and analysis.  They said we would like to thank the Laner’s for having invested a significant amount of money in elucidating these issues and raising them to a different level of other than just raw citizen concerns.  To that end we join the Laner’s in requesting that your Board require a full EIS process for this application and finally, while we are grateful to the Laner’s for hiring consultants who’ve identified many of the problems in the studies, we urge your Board not to forget about us that in requiring revisions to the plan that alleviate the Laner’s concerns that the impacts not be shifted off-site to the Arboretum and the wetland.  That is all I have to say about this project tonight. 

Mr. Kyler Cragnolin stated West Mount Airy Road.  I live right across from the proposed project at Upland Lane.  Regarding the issue of the easement and the right to improve the easement, it seems in my mind sort of unfortunate that it’s become a distraction from the very large body of greater issues here and naturally if the determination had been that he did not have a right to expand the road, enlarge the road then of course that would have been critical as a threshold issue.  The fact that he does is not surprising.  I consider it sort of ancillary.  Naturally anyone, and I’m not an attorney I’m talking as a lay person with some experience with easements and grants and such, naturally if you own a house on a common-shared road you need to have the right to maintain it for your use and enjoyment.  Should a tree fall across the road or if some of the other residents didn’t want to pay to improve the road, you’d have the right to fill the potholes so you could pass by on the road.  I think that, beyond the legal issue, what you need to look at here as the purview of the Board in so many matters are not only legal but decisions of esthetics and ethics and appropriateness, I think what we have to ask ourselves here also is: what was the original intent of the grantor?  The developer potentially has the right to utilize and improve this road but when this was originally a piece of farmland it was divided up into 11 or 12 homesteads at the time everyone had the right to use and improve and maintain the road.  I see it in sort of my heart of hearts I see this degree of expansion as something which is clearly an unacceptable sort of inappropriate if not unethical expansion of the grant.  I don’t think the contemplation of the original grant of what was a hardscrabble dirt road for 80 years was ever that it would be paved and made into an 18 or 20 foot freeway.  I see that as a lay person, my perspective and you’re each going to have to make that decision for yourselves.  You can’t look to Mr. Steinmetz or Mr. Lodes to decide that for you because it’s not a legal decision.  It’s another sort of decision that we’re going to have to make here in looking at this issue.  I’ve got a lot to say but I’m going to have some other opportunities to say it in the future.  While we have the picture up here on the screen though I will mention the entrance road, we have about the first 50 feet of this road which is proposed to be widened by the applicant which slopes directly towards Mount Airy Road.  We’re looking at about 1,000 square feet of asphalt, potentially, that’s going to drain towards Mount Airy Road and from what I can see from the drawing there’s no storm water management there to offer that.  We’re looking at a direct, single point discharge of that storm water either into the brook or into the wetland there.  I think that that is a problem that needs to be addressed if it can be, it can be something that there really isn’t a viable solution to because there really isn’t a lot of room at that end to put any sort of storm water management in there.  The engineer for the applicant stated that the berms of the road, the sides of the existing road are already compacted and therefore are probably not permeable anyway and that is absolutely totally false.  If you walk the Lane and you look at either side, it’s woodsy duff or its green grass all of which have an absorptive quality that will not be there when that’s wall-to-wall asphalt.  This I think is a real issue looking at this design.  There’s no storm water planning at all.  Obviously we’re doubling the volume and the speed of the water that’s going to be discharging there and that needs to be addressed.  I wanted to mention something about the ground water issues or I’ll have to do it next month.  Let me say that the area is unique and I touched on this a little bit last time, many months ago when I spoke, saying that from a geologic perspective it is unique.  Certain towns have protocols and classifications.  I know Bedford does, there’s a certain thing called a “unique area” or an “aquifer protection zone.”  We don’t have those things yet but 10 years ago I stood here and bemoaned the fact that we didn’t have biodiversity studies at a time when there were some issues before this Board and the Board used their discretion in the absence of that to do the right thing and to see that it was fully informed regarding those wildlife issues at that time.  I think we need to do the same thing here.  What is unique about this area is that it is a very fragile aquifer for a very simple reason.  In order to understand the morphology of this area, the topology, you need to understand the geomorphology that formed it which was glacier activity that was more prominent on these higher ridges than it affected the low lands.  In effect, the glaciers 10,000 feet of ice acted as a giant snowplow and removed most of the soils from these highland areas.  If you hike Anthony’s Nose, even Turkey Mountain in Yorktown you’ll see the bedrock outcroppings at the high points in this area and we’ve heard some mention about bedrock issues and water on bedrock. This is clearly the case here.  As I said, this is a ridge this piece of property.  I think what I said last time is the ridge of the roof.  When the glacier passed over the area on its way south the erosive forces are more prominent on the high ground.  Most of the soil that was removed ended up in the valleys or basically most of it ended up on Long Island which is the terminal marine.  There’s a certain amount of material incorporated within the glacier when that melts, that’s called ablation till that doesn’t remain on the high areas either because of the alluvial effects of all that melt water of 10,000 feet of ice.  It generates a lot of water and generally washes all the sediments, all the till down into the lower areas.  What we have here is a dome of rock.  You’ve got a lot of stuff in print from LBG, all textbook stuff, all platitudes and generalities.  What you need to know, nobody here is jealous, what you need to know that what we have there is a solid dome, like a tabletop in your house.  Very thin mantel of till on top of it, it makes it very fragile because there isn’t much soil to mitigate septic systems, lawn chemicals, things that are generally applied that tend to compromise the ground water.  Think of it this way, if it were your kitchen table and we were all sitting around the table.  If I were getting a little too verbose and animated as I never do and I knocked over my pint of beer without a tablecloth, everybody at the table is going to get a wet lap.  With a thin linen tablecloth, which is what you have here, most of that liquid is still going to disperse, if you had a very heavy woven tablecloth, which is what you have in areas where you have deep sediments and soils it’s not that much of an issue.  The discharge from the septic fields and from other human uses has time to be mitigated and remediated both biologically and chemically by the soil.  That does not happen here.  What happens in this area is it tends to penetrate a foot or two until it hits the bedrock and then it’s got to go somewhere just like a spilled drink on the table, and where does it go?  It goes off-site, it goes sideways, it goes into the many springs and wetlands that amazingly were not seen when the site work was done and the engineering there.  Most of the engineering and soil work was all done by the applicant and that is unacceptable.  Most of the LBG stuff was not site-specific.  I think before we can consider compromising that delicate aquifer we need to know certain things like: types of soil, we need to know depths of soil, depth to bedrock, depth to ground water.  Just one example my neighbor on West Mount Airy did a little probing for perspective development a few years back, she dug six perk holes and the next morning she had six little swimming pools filled right up to the top with water and that I have seen happen time and time again.  The bedrock is very shallow and in the spring the water table is just below the surface and this is naturally an issue.  We need more site-specific work.  We need to know what the conditions are there.  The County solution to simply add fill if the depth of soil doesn’t permit proper percolation is akin to putting a loaf of bread on the table, it may catch some of the spilled drink but it’s really not an appropriate solution.  This is a very delicate area.  If you go back and take a look you’ll see some of those springs.  There are spring houses on either sides of Upland Lane, on Mr. Marrone’s property there’s a spring house, on Mr. Cooney’s property to the McGuire Lane side there is, they’re vernal pools and standing water throughout the area.  You can see a pool as you pull out of McGuire Lane and look straight ahead you’ll see a body of water there.  You see a lake on top of the hill, why?  That’s totally counterintuitive, that’s a unique geologic feature.  That happens because there’s nowhere for that water to go because there’s bedrock there.  This is a very unusual area and it needs a special level of attention if this is to be considered for further development.  In my opinion, that area, given the fragility of it, is already over-developed.  I think we’re looking to make a bad situation there worse.  I think it’s indicative of the fact that the application is basically ill-conceived and over reaching in terms of a cul-de-sac 2,500 feet off of a public road and many other issues that need to be addressed.  I’ll talk a little bit more about it next time.  Thank you for your time. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s clear that we aren’t going to be able to close this public hearing tonight so we’re going to entertain a motion.

Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we adjourn this public hearing to our next meeting, seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the question, one thing similar to what the Laner’s did, David Steinmetz submitted a big, huge, thick packet dated December 31st, 2009 which was the applicant’s answer to a whole bunch of comments by the residents but those comments were from the fall of 2009.  It might be good for the applicant, Tim Miller and Ralph’s office to do another submittal addressing all of the comments that have come in January, February and March.

Mr. Bard Schwartz responded I really appreciate the suggestion and that is certainly what we intend to do.  I would also, Madame Chairwoman if I could, I know Mr. Kehoe tonight made a suggestion about if your Board at some point during this process is going to seek the input advice from an arborist regarding the trees that are being proposed to come down, we’d like to get that process started now if we could so that we could expedite that review.  I don’t know if you need to formally authorize…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess it would become part of Susan’s motion.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated this would be an arborist that the applicant would pay for.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have three approved arborists.  It would be one of our arborists paid for by the applicant. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated let us know which trees are going to be possibly injured by the construction. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there would be two things that we should get clarity on.  They had a very thick arborist report, like everything else with this case, it was done a really long time ago and it analyzed the trees on the – I think that the entire site, I don’t know if it did the road but it definitely did the whole back of the property and there’s a very thorough arborist report in here.  Our arborist should review that report as well as do field work to confirm that the identification of species and number and size of trees was correct and also should spend time on the road right-of-way. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I’d like to amend my motion to include instructing staff to hire an arborist to do a further review of the site.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated one of the things that, it doesn’t have to be part of that motion because it was already said here, we needed to get clear that there’s going to be a submission of the survey with boundaries and the whole bit.  We don’t want to keep dragging that particular piece for the length of this application.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated that’s correct.  The next submission will include a survey stamped by a licensed surveyor and we’ll address the outstanding questions that were raised by the neighbors and if there’s any specific concerns your Board has let us know and we’ll address that in our next submission. 
Ms. Joann Whalen stated it’s in our papers from February is the lower Lane.  There is no proposal for the development of the lower Lane.  The lower Lane road runs 1,200 feet, almost a ¼ of a mile.  It is the same distance once you turn up the Neblo property up to the subdivision.  They have a plan for the road, drainage, storm water runoff, all that type of thing.  There is no plan whatsoever that has been proposed by the applicant with regard to the construction of the lower Lane.  They’re proposing to remove trees and just repave.  Drainage has not been addressed, we have addressed the trees but the trees are going to be addressed further by your arborist.  We have brought in an arborist.  We have an engineer’s report for the lower Lane which addresses all of the issues with regard to that 1,200 feet, it’s the gateway to get up to the top.  So that all the issues that you have on the top you have on the lower Lane and there has been no addressing of those issues for the lower Lane up until this point.  There is no plan and we need a plan and I would reiterate what the Arboretum has requested is that an EIS plan be done and that all of the issues be addressed with Mr. Giordano for the next session including what they’re going to do on the lower Lane because we have wetlands, we have drainage issues, we have road issues, we have slopes there and we have half a plan and that’s where we are.  So, nobody has addressed that and I wanted to bring that to the Board’s attention so that that issue can – the lower Lane can be addressed through the engineering plans. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked the lower Lane is as you approach the site?

Ms. Joann Whalen responded yes, the lower Lane, when you turn onto Upland Lane and you come down the 1,200 feet which is you’ve heard from many of the lower Lane residents today with regard to tree removal, that’s the whole stretch of houses before you make the turn and then go up the Neblo property to the subdivision. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked it skirts that dead pond area on the left?

Ms. Joann Whalen responded when you turn onto Upland Lane and you go passed the culvert, and the culvert is an issue, then when you’re coming down the whole Lane which is what they’re proposing to widen to 18 feet, there is no plan at all with regard to drainage, or marking the road, the trees there, the removal of the trees there or anything with regard to the construction or the “improvement” of that Lane which Mr. Marrone addressed.  There is no plan. 

Mr. John Neblo? stated there’s a storm water plan was inadequate in our engineers view for the development.  There is no storm water plan whatsoever for Upland Lane. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated there is no plan with regards to the construction.  What they want to do is just repave it but it’s a 1,200 foot road, you can’t just repave it.  You’re going to change the whole contour of the road because you’re widening it almost double and it’s 1,200 feet.  It’s almost the same length on the lower Lane that it is to get to the upper.  So, if you’re going to have construction for the upper, you’ve got to do something for the lower in order to get the same thing done.  Our engineers have written a report strictly with regard to the lower lane, that’s Mr. Peecie’s report which is attached to our materials and then you have Mr. Reddick’s report which is an engineer for the upper lane.  We did it in two sections because the lower lane had not been an issue before the easement thing came up.  It just never came up so that once that became an issue the lower lane has to be addressed as to what’s going to happen with all in that area, the trees, the wildlife, the wetlands, the culvert, the road.   

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a motion on the floor, seconded.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’m sorry I stepped out what was that motion?

Ms. Susan Todd stated it was a motion to adjourn this public hearing to our next meeting and also to instruct staff to hire an arborist to go out and survey the site to their request. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for the record the arborist will give us a cost proposal which then in turn give to the applicant.  When the applicant pays that fee then we’ll authorize the arborist to begin his work.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how long does that take?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it could take two or three weeks.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’ll second the motion but I want to make a point.  On the question, there’s been an issue raised tonight by a couple of speakers about whether we should be requiring an Environmental Impact Statement and I know it’s something that we may have once talked about a while back on this and I realize it’s a little unusual because of how far along we are into the project but it seems to be the kind of project that the further that we get into it the more issues have been popping up some of which pertain to what’s now being referred to as this lower Lane which raises a whole set of issues apart from those on the applicant’s property itself and I think we ought to at least think about it.  Maybe staff could take a look and make a recommendation and I think we might need advice from council on whether this is a project that should have an Environmental Impact Statement.  It would be I think a more limited one than we sometimes see because it’s just not a big enough project to encompass all the – many of the subjects that are looked at in these.  I’m concerned we’re proceeding in a way now that there’s so many different things that are being discussed and we’ve got this and this letter, and that responding to this and it’s sort of strikes me we’re going down a little bit of haphazard road and maybe we would all benefit.  It’s going to take longer, I understand but maybe we would all benefit from a more focused review of the type an EIS would provide.
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked do you want us to draft up a limited scope for the next meeting to give you something to talk about or do you not want us to do that yet?

Ms. Susan Todd responded for me, I feel there’s so many things that have been given to us over the last three years that to have a comprehensive look at it now with what we know now would be very valuable and make it easier to make a clear decision. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think that would be useful Chris so we could decide whether we want to actually issue a pos. dec. and require it.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated we can package this, our responses and the comments that have come to date as an EIS type format that would have all the responses by subject matter for you, like an expanded EIS package that would address these comments rather than go into the full SEQRA kind of starting over again.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated actually what the Board is asking is for essentially to put together a kind of mini scoping document for their consideration just to address all the issues that have been brought up to date.  As you’ve heard of course there’s a number of issues that the public has brought up, the Board has brought up, staff has brought up and they need it in a condensed form which we do all the time.  

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated we could use that as a table of contents.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe we need to have that in motion form too. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated and I’d like to add to the motion that we instruct staff to look into the possibility of an EIS, some sort of limited EIS that would help us all pull together the information that we need to understand this application better. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re actually asking for a scoping mechanism or not? 

Ms. Susan Todd responded they can look into the EIS and then prepare a scoping document for us for the next meeting if that makes sense. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated maybe we’ll make recommendations of course but it’s ultimately up to the Board to decide whether or not a full EIS is warranted.  You’ll be able to determine that when you see our scoping document again amounts to a table of contents for further study. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)
PB 17-84    a.
Public Hearing: Letter (received by the Planning Division on April 23, 2010) from Ferhun Ogunc requesting Planning Board approval for a change of use from the former Extra Fuels gas station to the “Mohegan Farm Market” located at 1950 East Main Street (Route 6) as shown on a five page set of drawings entitled “Mohegan Farm Market Inc.” prepared by Teo Siguenza, Architect, dated May 18, 2010. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe that we received a couple of illustrations from you this time around and there are a number of questions raised at the work session.  Were you there?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded no.  I wasn’t here. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there were some questions that some members had and I guess I can let them speak for themselves at this point.  The market, I personally have a question because I raised it with staff about your drawing, the one that you submitted to us last time and it shows the full outline of the market with display shelves for fruits and vegetables all around the building.

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded not all around the building, just the front of the building. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it shows it in the back also. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m looking at one that shows front and back.

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded yes front and back, not the sides. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated my question is whether or not you plan to put these things outside or not because I know there is a Town Code that prohibits this kind of thing and I’m not sure why you presented it this way.

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded we like to display like all other farm markets, they display outside all the flowers and sometimes vegetables and fruits and we just going to be here temporarily, just a couple of seasons until new development start construction and this place was, as you know, a gas station and now it’s closed, looks like an eyesore for the Town.  We’re going to improve the looking of this building and painting and put some flowers there on it and some fruit and vegetables in the front of the building and in the back of the building and also it’s more environmental friendly than the gas station would be.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated again, I don’t know that any of us truly object to a market but I’m concerned that we would be asked to approve the market with the drawing that you submitted which shows things on the outside.  Again, I think there was some issue about this whether or not you’d have to go and get something from Code Enforcement to certify that this would be okay.  That’s what I would need in order to vote this up or put down.  I don’t feel comfortable approving the drawing as is because my sense of what is the Town Code says this kind of thing can’t be done.  If Code says you can do it than I guess – even if I don’t like it, you’re permitted to do it.

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc asked how long will it take this?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know.  Going directly to the office, could he do that?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded if we’re talking about the outdoor sale of goods, again, our interpretation is that’s not allowed by Code that would have to be referred to the Zoning Board if the applicant wants to pursue that. 

Mr. John Klarl stated just let the applicant know the Zoning Board had a recent application before involving a gas station in the Town and they had outdoor storage of propane tanks, ice vending machines, the stacks of Coke and cases, that kind of thing and the applicant in that case argued that what was placed under the canopy it was no longer outdoor storage.  The Zoning Board didn’t go with that theory and they felt anything outside the building was outdoor storage and was prohibited.  We had that recent case in the Town and the outdoor storage we talked about at the work session is allowed in certain businesses such as swimming pools, automobiles.  What’s the language for a nursery that uses live?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded live plants we said.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated live plants meaning the nursery stock. 

Mr. John Klarl asked that’s the language live plants?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that was it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated live plant material.

Mr. John Klarl stated so above-ground pools, automobiles, live plant materials but on a recent Zoning Board of Appeals application they said storing under the canopy is still outdoor storage.  

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc asked even fruits, vegetables?

Mr. John Klarl responded we didn’t have that case yet.  That’s why I think the Chair is suggesting to you that you might want to pursue talking to Code Enforcement or the Zoning Board of Appeals about your special use.

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc stated I understand.  We’d like to start over there from inside, can I propose…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if you plan to sell and you want to move this along I would vote up immediately I think for it if your produce is on the inside.  It’s my feeling that what you’re doing is against Code so I can’t sit here and knowingly vote if I feel that this is against Code, vote for it the way you’ve drawn it so that it looks like we’ve approved you to do something that is not to Code.  Do you know what I’m saying?  So, if you can move your produce on the inside and show your drawings with your produce on the inside that’s what I would vote for.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked can you conduct this business at least for some time without outdoor storage?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded yes, that’s why I’d like to do that. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated can we just approve this on the condition that there not be any outdoor storage unless and until he has an approval from the Zoning Board to do so?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded you certainly can do that but the Chairperson just made the point that she would like to see the actual site plan without any outdoor sale.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is my feeling.  We will do what we do when referring something to ARB.  If he can bring you a plan that shows everything is inside I would vote for that on the condition that he brings you that plan with the produce on the inside. 
Mr. Ferhun Ogunc stated I have these plans right now. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated before we get too far ahead of ourselves it is a public hearing, so there are residents.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m just saying that that’s how I would have to vote for it, if he brings you a plan in the interim.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s fine. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think that he has a plan.  Do you want me to deliver this to you or do you want carry on with the public hearing?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no, we can have people come up now.  This is a public hearing and you can express your opinions or concerns about this public market on Route 6.

Mr. Hammil Degenery presented himself and stated I’m from 96 Oregon Road.  Last year I appeared in front of you for the same thing the gentleman here is and you did approve me to take over the place, Hollywood Video.  It’s been a while but we went back-and-forth me and the landlord that the tenant who share the land and me about the parking spaces.  Finally in May 20 I got a lease from the landlord which I have a copy here which the TSG Grant, whatever their name and Hudson Valley Market Corporation which is me where I’m planning to open Hollywood Video.  Mr. Kessler I’m not opposed to this the gentleman here. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked do your comments pertain to this gentleman’s application that we’re having a hearing on or do they go back to your application?

Mr. Hammil Degenery responded I don’t know.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated because if they’re only on your application I don’t think that it’s appropriate at a public hearing on this gentleman’s application to discuss your matter.

Mr. Hammil Degenery stated no, I’m here to discuss his matter.  If we can open two green markets half a mile from each other either I withdraw or him, that’s why I’m here.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think we can possibly turn down someone because somebody else is doing the same business.

Mr. Hammil Degenery stated absolutely sir.  I just want to know what is it the Planning Board have intention for his market to my market because I just got the lease last week.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated if you an opposition to his proposal on some ground, you should state it.  If your opposition, quite frankly, is simply that you don’t want the competition I don’t think that’s the basis this Board could possibly consider to turn somebody down.

Mr. Hammil Degenery stated I am not afraid from the ShopRite next door to me, I have no opposition to him there but I want to know what his plans.  If he has plans to produce outside the way the Chairman discuss it with him could I have the same thing?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I didn’t suggest that he have any produce outside.  That’s not what I said at all. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think she just said that he can’t unless the Zoning Board gave an approval.

Mr. Hammil Degenery stated I just wanted to know.  I have no problem with him opening that.  That’s why I’m here to let you know.  Thank you. I discuss with Chris tomorrow about this lease?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.   

Mr. David Wald stated I think this is a wonderful use and I’m here tonight to support it particularly in light of the fact adjoining this property we have probably one of the most distressed section of Cortlandt Boulevard/Route 6.  I think this would be refreshing.  I hope that eventually this would go before the Zoning Board of Appeals and that they would approve some storage of fruit and vegetables in the exterior of the building.  That’s a benign use and it’s also something that people really like.  They travel for miles to go to farm markets and I think it would be a good development in the Town of Cortlandt. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anyone else?

Mr. Robert Foley stated we ultimately will be making a motion to close the hearing and await a Resolution or actually approve this.  We can’t approve this tonight?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I have drafted a Resolution but all the Resolution is is the recitation of facts whereas clauses, when the public hearing was held, information like that.  The condition section is blank because there were no conditions.  We could add a condition that the applicant is required to remove all outdoor sales and storage as depicted on this revised drawing I guess.  We could either tell him to remove it and/or receive a Variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals to permit it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but then if the Zoning Board permits it the extent of the display should come under our purview.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated then you could approve the drawing that showed the outdoor storage but that’s not what the Chairperson wants to do subject to him getting a Variance. 

Mr. John Klarl stated why don’t we put an alternative that the drawings stricken as outdoor sells or storage but in the event he succeeds before the Zoning Board of Appeals allowing any outdoor sells…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s what we discussed in the work session. 

Mr. John Klarl stated then he could come back to the Planning Board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s the way we discussed it so that’s fine. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that Resolution would be 31-10.

Mr. Robert Foley stated which we really haven’t seen yet because there are no conditions attached as of yet.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s close and reserve.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes that would be a better thing to do, close and reserve and then bring it back for next time. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t really have any major objections but I’m not going to fight the Code to the outdoor display and sales of the fruit and seasonally fruits and vegetables as I understand what you’re saying about the Code.  My major concerns would have been and I’m not sure if you answered this sir, when the gasoline station was closed the gas tanks and everything were removed.  There’s nothing underground there?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded yes, nothing underground.  Everything’s removed; pumps, gas tanks.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do we have your documentation of that?

Mr. Ed Vergano asked do you have the closure documents from the State?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded not us but everything removed already. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated if you could provide us with those closure documents from the owner.  They’re called closure documents from the State.  It means everything was removed properly and the State’s closed its books on the issue.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that would be a second thing; the drawings plus that statement that you would bring to the office.

Mr. Robert Foley stated because that’s an environmental concern if it wasn’t done adequately and you are selling food there so that would be my concern.  The other one is on the plan here it’s not very clear to me the main entrance and exit remains as the gas station had it?  It’s like a way in and a way out.

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated there seemed to be a third way out of there when you go towards the 911 pub at the westerly end.  Is that going to be blocked off?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded there’s a bar…
Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words, you would have a very definitive way in and out?  Only two?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated this is temporary?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is one of my big issues here with this particular application and I mentioned it in the work session.  How temporary is temporary?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded it’s maybe two seasons at the most because it’s going to be a new development over there and I don’t think it’s more than that.  When they start construction we’ll be out of there. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I wouldn’t bet on them starting construction anywhere close to two years from now.  I’d be fairly confident that you could – it would be a ways down the road beyond that.  Where are they on the SEQRA process?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they haven’t completed their DEIS yet. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you could maybe add several years to that two-year estimate I suspect.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated which I’m sure doesn’t make you unhappy.  As long as you bring these two things that we’re requesting then hopefully you’ll be able to get started for this season. 

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc stated as soon as we bring those documents.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we are going to tonight based on the fact that there aren’t many people who had anything negative to say we could probably close that hearing then we will instruct the staff to prepare the appropriate Resolution for you, an approving Resolution provided that on the condition that these two things are dealt with.  You have to get that to them as soon as you can. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that Resolution to approve will be at the next meeting which is July 7th.

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc stated July 7th.  In other words we cannot open until July 7th?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded we wouldn’t be able to give you an approval until July 7th, that’s what’s contemplated by this motion. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to close and reserve and prepare Resolution for the next meeting provided those conditions previously cited are met, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. Ivan Kline stated the good news is you’ll have lots of years on the other end that you weren’t anticipating. 

PB 23-08    b.
Public Hearing: Application of John P. Alfonzetti, P.E., for the property of Angelo Cipriano, for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 4 lot major subdivision of 9.25 acres for property located off of Mt. Airy Road E., southeast of Joseph Wallace Drive, as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary 4 Lot Subdivision Mountain View Estates” prepared by John Alfonzetti, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2010.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated I’m representing Mr. Cipriano regarding a proposed 4 lot subdivision.  It’s actually about 9.25 acre lot.  There is one house on it that is intended to remain.  We’re going to put three additional houses on it.  Each will meet the Zoning and Code requirements of the Town.  We’re open for any comments.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I thought at one point the existing house that was going to be removed. 

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded the house is going to remain.  It’s going to remain and going to be refurbished.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  Is there anybody here who would like to make a comment on this?

Ms. Susanna Rosensteel presented herself and stated my husband Edward and I own 6 Joseph Wallace Drive property just adjacent to lot I believe four of the proposed project we’re talking about.  My husband and I have various concerns mostly related to the quality of life of the home that we now live in.  First of all we’re concerned about the timeline.  Are the lots all to be built at the same time or are we going to start with one lot and see how it sells and then build out the other four?  What’s the period of construction?  A huge concern of ours.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the map you are located where?

Ms. Susanna Rosensteel responded I believe we’re lot 28 which is adjacent to lot 4.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the lower part of the map.

Ms. Susanna Rosensteel responded right. 
Mr. John Alfonzetti stated with on the corner of Joseph Wallace in the new proposed drawing.  First one on the corner, so you go up to the end of Joseph Wallace and you make a left there, it’s that one right on the corner. 

Ms. Susanna Rosensteel stated one of our main concerns is a driveway placement which appears to be right behind our back fence.  As it stands now we have a road going in front of our house and we have a road leading up to the current property which is 6A and we’re concerned now that we’re going to have yet another paved road in back of our house so that makes three paved roads.  We’ll be surrounded almost.  The way it is now, traffic going to and from 6A is rather busy.  We have cars going every time of day; three o’clock in the morning, it’s constant, headlights shining into our house when we’re eating, when we’re sleeping and we’re concerned that yet another paved road is just going to add to this situation.  Also, we’re concerned that we’re not going to be able to enjoy our backyard the way we used to.  We moved here because we wanted serenity.  We wanted quiet and we fear that the placement of this driveway is going to ruin that.  Of course this coincides with more noise.  If there are going to be four more homes you can count on at least 8 more cars.  The traffic situation the way it is now if 6A stands the way it is now that’s going to be exacerbated.  We’re requesting that the developer consider movement of the proposed driveway that would be behind our house possibly to between the driveway the lots 3 and 4 which would preserve more forested area and not directly impact our quality of life.  Also, not to make this a very personal issue because many of our neighbors are going to be affected by this as well but during the time of the proposed development we’ll have a small child.  I’m actually due in about three weeks so we’re very concerned that noise is going to be an issue, that dust from construction will be an issue, the removal of trees of course could reduce the air quality.  We want to get some kind of assurance that the environment will remain safe, will remain clean.  Another concern is location of mailboxes, garbage cans.  Is this going to be at the end of each driveway for each house or will this be at the end of the service road that currently goes up to 6A?  If it’s at the end of the service road then garbage collection is going to be on the corner of our lot which could invite raccoons and other animals.  It’s more noise in front of our house.  We would like, if possible, for mail and other services to take place at the end of each house’s driveway rather than at the corner of our property, essentially, unless it means widening that road even more.  The proposed drywells on the corner of Joseph Wallace and what would be Cipriano Drive are located in proximity to our drinking water well.  Will the construction and the operation of the drywells affect the quality of our drinking water?  The water from these drywells, will it drain downhill towards our residence meaning that we’re going to have more flooding in our basement.  Associated with that, will the water quality in our well be affected by the drilling of new wells on lots 2, 3 and 4?  Will the amount of water from our well be reduced by the new demands created by the proposed development?  As you can see we have all sorts of quality of life issues here.  These houses are going to be pretty close to my house and to my neighbor’s houses.  Take into consideration service vehicles, water, tree removal.  Are they going to change the grade of the property?  Is that going to create flooding?  I think another neighbor will speak to the assurance of environmental impact we threw some preliminary reports and there seems to be no impact on the environment.  How do we know?  Who developed that?  Who came up with that?  Can we trust that?  Is that a neutral third party?  But, I’ll let my neighbor speak to that.  Thank you very much for your time. 

Mr. Maurice Steiker stated I own the house at 10 Joseph Wallace Drive which is the house it touches the property of Mrs. Cipriano all the way in the back by the power lines.  Most of my concerns are concerns that some are brought up and some are the same concerns of everybody on the block.  I think there’s probably about 10 people here or 8 people here that are residents of Joseph Wallace Drive, I don’t know if they have to stand up or raise their hands but most of my neighbors are here, two of them that are not here, one’s overseas, he will be here at the next meeting Mr. Cooper who’s directly affected next to the 6A house I think his house is number 8 Joseph Wallace Drive he’s probably the most impacted, he’s on a business trip in Europe.  He and his wife will be here at the next meeting and another lady who lives across the way who happens to be in the hospital right now.  Pretty much all of us are here right now.  This is the first time we’ve been doing this.  We’re a little bit concerned.  I’m going to bring up a few things some may have been brought up.  Some of the concerns that we have are, in general all of us, we all have well water and septic tanks so we’re interested in the impact of the wells and septic tanks on our water, again, because we all do have well water and septic tanks.  Will the proposed new homes drain water from our wells or pollute our water?  Also the impact on Joseph Wallace Drive in terms of traffic, safety, it’s now a dead-end street with lots of kids that have either lived on the street, will be living on the street, and live on the street.  I happen to have five kids, right now only my youngest child still lives at home but we did pick living there because it was quiet, because it was a dead-end street.  I know there was a property that was there before Mr. Cipriano bought the house I knew the previous owners.  I’ve been to the house, that there be one other house built there to replace it or improve or two is perhaps understandable.  A development, we don’t know how it’s going to affect all our homes in a lot of different ways.  There’s definitely going to be an increase in noise and lights.  There’s going to be an impact of all the building equipment.  There’s going to be increased traffic and our road is pretty damaged as it is every winter.  Is it going to be worse or not worse?  There’s also another entrance to the property.  The address of the property if I recall is on Mount Airy Road.  There is an entrance and at one time there was a mailbox to that property on Mount Airy Road East.  I and other residents of Joseph Wallace Drive want to know why that particular road is not being used.  Is it because it’s not a Town road so it’s more costly or is there a real reason why it’s not being used?  Of course the developer or whoever is going to be building there would like to use the Town road but there is a private road and maybe with a private road you’re not allowed to build 4 houses.  I don’t know all these things but that’s a question that many of us have.  Again, why is the road from Mount Airy Road not being used?  According to the memo there’s a memo that came from the Town of Cortlandt from the Planning Division that was dated December 9th, 2008 section 3-8.  It said it was recommended “since the total length of the dead-end and new dead-end road will be 1,240” feet it’s more than a 500 feet I think that’s normally allotted.  There was some question about that and I don’t see any answer to that.  The issue was supposed to be evaluated.  Is it supposed to be evaluated by the Planning Board?  This is in one of those memos that was here that I saw that I’m sure you have a copy of.  It’s dated December 9th, 2008 so I don’t know if there was anything done with that.  What’s going to be the impact of cutting the trees?  Not just to save a tree or two trees on somebody’s property, I mean that’s his business but how will it concern the drainage and soil erosion to all our homes that are below the property?  That I don’t know.  I’m not very familiar with these things.  I’ve been here this evening.  I’ve heard a lot of stuff that opened my eyes.  I don’t even know what the names of the trees are on my property.  I grew up in cement in the Bronx, I don’t know any of that but I know that there are laws and there is an environmental protection and there are certain trees that look old and big that have big crosses on them to be cut down and I don’t know anything about it but I’d like to find out a little bit more and is that going to affect my property and my neighbor’s properties of course.  There’s an evacuation stream that goes between my property and the Cipriano property all the way at the end as well as Mr. Cooper’s property.  From what I gather, if that water doesn’t drain down that stream whenever there’s a lot of snow and whenever there’s a lot of rain, does that mean it’s going to end up in my backyard or under my house?  There’s a lot of rock where we live.  That I know because there’s a lot of iron.  I heard a gentleman explaining something about rock and I did notice, there’s a lot of rock so is that going to affect the drainage of the water from these properties onto our properties?  We’re all pretty concerned about it because none of us are experts in this.  I was told, and I don’t know if this is true, that the area of my house or part of the area of my house which could be also part of the Cipriano lot or part of the other lots is part of the New York City watershed.  I never knew what that meant.  The only thing I know is that there is the Croton reservoir and the Croton Dam near where we live, now if that’s part of it does the New York City Environmental Protection get involved in it?  When I first bought my house I had a guy come to cut the grass and everything and he looked at my property and he says “oh look down in the back it looks like it’s all wetland.”  I didn’t know what he was talking about.  Wow this is swamp, I got beat for my money, that’s what I thought but it’s not true what I was told is he was saying that meaning I can’t go build what I want, I can’t build a putting area in the backyard there so is that true and also the neighbor’s property.  I don’t know.  I’m not sure what that means.  The proposed roads to the properties is now a Town road, Mrs. Cipriano wrote, I don’t know if that’s true or not but Cipriano Way or Cipriano Road that little extension onto our dead-end.  Is that going to be a Town road or a private road?  I think if it’s a private road there’s a limit to the amount of homes that can be built at the end of it.  I’m not sure if that’s true or not.  It’s a question I’m bringing up.  If it’s a Town road then does that mean the Town is going to be plowing it?  Does that mean that the post office trucks are going to go up it?  Does that mean that the garbage trucks are going to go up it?  I have no idea what that means.  If it’s a private road it’s a different ball of wax and if it’s a public road.  We need some answers about that.  Another question some of the neighbors had and I don’t know if this pertains to this or not, will the building of these homes affect our property taxes in any way?  It’s a question I have.  I have no idea.  I don’t know what really way to get the answer.  Maybe that can be addressed either by somebody here on the Board or somebody sending some information to us by e-mail or by mail.  There was something that I looked at that was public record that one of my neighbor’s brought me, it was called the State Environmental Assessment Form.  This was filled out only by the applicant and there was a whole bunch of questions.  I’ll go through them now.  I assume this is the right time.  A3A soil drainage: there was a question on soil drainage no answer was given, so I guess an answer has to be given about soil drainage.  A9 a site near an aquifer or water or something similar to an aquifer, that wasn’t addressed either or the answer was given as no.  Who checks out the answers if they’re only given by the applicant?  Is this all going now to an agency that’s going to be verifying the answers or looking or do we get a report from an independent assessor or an independent expert about these things that doesn’t work for us, doesn’t work for Mrs. Cipriano, works for the Town, which means works for us because we do pay taxes here.  Do we get any answers to these things?  The drainage stream I had mentioned that’s why I was concerned about the drainage and the wetlands also about the impact of traffic.  There was a question I think it’s B1G that wasn’t answered about the amount of traffic going up-and-down.  I don’t know how that’s assessed.  I don’t know what’s considered appropriate or not.  Obviously for living at a dead-end street with little kids we want it to be safe.  We don’t want too much traffic.  If that could be avoided, great, that’s one of the reasons why we bought homes there.  A time period of construction was another question it was B7: will this mean that there’s going to be three years of construction or is it a set timetable if the construction site is approved?  Also, somebody else brought up something previously tonight about blasting.  I had no idea.  I hadn’t thought of it.  Will there be blasting since it is all rock?  And then I was told by an engineer that came and looked at my water.  Concerning B13, B14 and B17 are all questions concerning well water and septics.  Either there was no explanation given to the answer where it said “explanation: no this will not affect it.”  Okay, why?  Is that a fact?  How is that determined?  B22 and B23 again concerning well water use.  The answer wasn’t clear.  B25: there’s a list of different agencies and bodies that were supposed to be getting this particular report, the environmental assessment, are they supposed to submit answers that we can then look at or that our representatives can look at?  We don’t know.  Again, I’m asking these questions because we had talked to a few of the neighbors about common concerns and these came up.  None of us knew how the system works.  C1: there’s a bunch of Variances, Permits and amendments that there was a list of them.  Does the applicant need any of these that are unchecked?  He only checked one or two of them if you look at that report.  Is he supposed to get all of them checked or not or is it just irrelevant?  Then there was C6 and C10 again it concerns septic tanks and water drainage.  C11: will Town answer this question?  Who will pay and will it affect us?  I’m giving you just the numbers not to reread the whole report.  I’m assuming you have the same paperwork I do. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is this the memo?

Mr. Maurice Steiker responded it is.  Environmental Assessment form that was given on October 3rd, 2008 to the builder by the Town of Cortlandt I assume and you can get a copy of it.  Many of the questions are on here but they’re only answered by the applicant or they’re not answered at all which may mean that there’s an agency that’s supposed to answer them.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I can probably save you a little time.  Some of the things you are raising might be answered by staff.  They do this for a living.  They know where you need to go to get the answer if they don’t have it.  Other than just reading it into the record, which you could also just submit to planning staff, you would have to go and talk to people in the various Town offices about any specific thing that you didn’t get an answer to.  The applicant clearly should answer most of the questions but if there is no answer there maybe somebody in the Town staff could – you could start with the Planning Department.  Just pick the ones you think they could probably answer.  

Mr. Maurice Steiker stated the ones that are going in the record – I’m at the last one which is C12 which is the answer is: is there going to be any impact of additional traffic?  The question is no.  When there’s 11 houses and there’s 15, there’s got to be some impact.  Maybe it’s minimal, maybe it’s not.  What we don’t understand is who answers this question and if we’re supposed to go somewhere can you direct us to the Department?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I can explain.  What the applicant completed was called Part I of the Environmental Assessment form.  That’s the applicant’s responsibility.  This is a public hearing so the applicant is writing down everything you’re asking.  It will be his responsibility to address your concerns and further expound upon his answers in that Part I.  If the Planning Board is not satisfied with his answers in that Part I that plays itself out as the Planning Board is deciding whether to approve or not approve the application and they have to adopt what is called Part II of the Environmental Assessment form at the end of the process whether they’re going to adopt it or not.  So, he’s got to answer what you’re raising tonight. 
Mr. Maurice Steiker asked am I supposed to read it here or submit it to your office and save everybody time?  This is the first time I’m here so I’m reading all these things to everybody but in reality I would as just be happy to send it to everybody, go into the record, you guys answer it to the best of your ability and the powers that be that know more about this than us tell us an issue that’s irrelevant or this is an issue that has to be addressed by another agency or not.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded that kind of a form was given to the applicant to answer.  That is as you’ve just been told is his responsibility.  He needs to answer the questions.  Again, these came from the Town so there is a copy of this material in the Town files and records.  That’s why I’m saying…

Mr. Maurice Steiker asked as it concerns about this are we supposed to do what I’m doing now or send a letter to somebody?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded either way.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you can do both.  

Mr. Maurice Steiker stated because I’m not going to do this over-and-over with the same questions.  How do we proceed from here to get the answers to these questions?  That was my next thing or do we need what’s called, what I just heard for the time, an Environmental Impact Survey or is that ridiculous for this or not?  What do we do next?  We need some guidance to not waste your time and to make sure that our concerns are addressed.  If you could verbally answer it, great if not e-mail us or mail us you have all our addresses.  It says something about Town Engineering Division, Conservation Advisory Council, the Fire Advisory Board, do they all get copies of this and then they give answers?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes they do.

Mr. Maurice Steiker asked where do we see these?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded you come to the Planning Division over here.

Mr. Maurice Steiker stated okay, we get it from the Planning Division. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated again, the Town staff reviews all the information that comes into the Town but we can’t answer, or we don’t feel we’re qualified to answer certain biodiversity issues for example, we’ll bring in outside consultants which are paid for by the applicant.  Those reports are available to the public when they’re prepared of course. 

Mr. Maurice Steiker asked so what’s now going into the record, this is my first time here maybe I’ll be here again, maybe not, these things that are now going into record will now be addressed?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded absolutely.

Mr. Maurice Steiker continued and sent back to the people’s addresses you have. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it will be sent to the Planning Board which will end up in this file which your neighbor came in the office and got copies of.  That’s how you would get it.  You’d come back in and get copies.

Mr. Maurice Steiker asked so I could call your office and ask “did your answer the questions?  We’ll come in and get a copy.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and with one specific question that you did ask the property is in the New York City DEP watershed so the project has to be referred to New York City.  It hasn’t been referred yet.  It does have to be referred.

Mr. Robert Foley stated when you submitted an e-mail a year ago to the Town, most of those questions the three or four questions you asked were answered?

Mr. Maurice Steiker responded I have it in my bag over there.  I have all the e-mails that I had with the Planning Board. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it was back on May 4th. 

Mr. Maurice Steiker responded two or three of them were generally answered.  They weren’t as specific as any of these.  I was told there was going to be a hearing.  I didn’t even know how this process worked and then I should come to the hearing so that’s what I’m doing now.  My questions were answered by telling me to do what I’m doing now.  That’s the way I interpreted the answer. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated I’d like the Board to also look into the other access that has been brought up in the past not just by this gentleman.
Ms. Rosa T Dechon presented herself and stated my husband and I reside at 28 East Mount Airy Road.  We access our driveway at the bottom as we come up East Mount Airy Road off Joseph Wallace.  That’s how we access our driveway to get onto our property.  We are the first house on the left and as the same side as what’s being presented for the Permits for the housing development.  We moved here 13 years ago because we loved the area, we loved the location, the country setting, the seclusion, and we’re just pretty much disheartened by all this.  The way the houses were all developed there was these 9 acre property there, it wasn’t built then and we just feel, well why leave it now especially with the economy being the way it is and people foreclosing on their homes and having these homes built.  Just for monetary gain it’s just very upsetting to us.  It’s very upsetting.  We just don’t feel that our neighbor – should the landscape of our neighborhood should be subject to such hazardous conditions including poor air quality during the construction, including traffic flow, increased demand of water, these are all factors that are not environmentally friendly at this time that we must all take responsibility for saving our planet one family at a time.  Approving this request would have a negative impact on us very much so because of the location of our home.  We have dealt with poor water quality that is due to a high iron content in our area.  Our home sits at the bottom of the hill so we have the runoff on our property.  We deal with runoff throughout the wetlands that we have.  My husband and I have spent over $5,000 through the years to improve the situation.  We have pretty much what’s called a hydro plant in our basement trying to just clean up the water.  It’s just absolutely horrific and it is still absolutely horrible.  I have water filters, I have softeners, I have iron filters down there.  It is absolutely – and it’s still very upsetting to us.  Summer months we even experience poor water pressure in our area.  It is our contention that approving this proposal would only cause frustration to us due to the existing water problems.  In addition, an increase in our property taxes would be uneventful in order to accommodate road maintenance, garbage collection, and mail delivery among other things.  We do not deserve to have our taxes increased once more for the simple greed of part of the petitioner.  The original zoning of our neighborhood homes designates our block as a cul-de-sac in a quiet country setting.  The lot in question would increase the homes and cause us financial burden and would only impact negativity on all that reside in our neighborhood and could also impact the resale of our homes.  Thank you very much.  
Ms. Beth Jennings Eggar presented herself and stated I live at 5 Joseph Wallace Drive.  I’m representing Mrs. Cindy Bartolo who was in the hospital who is the next house 7 Joseph Wallace Drive.  This entire cul-de-sac is at the top of one of the steepest hills between here and Manhattan and the road is in terrible shape because of course, just from traffic from all of us living there.  It’s actually part of a farm, a 300-year old Dutch farm and the houses at the top, on the cul-de-sac, all have had many, many children and now Mrs. Bartolo has grandchildren and great grandchildren that ride their tricycles around and I have my children and grandchildren.  We have a new baby coming across the street. The driveway that goes to the Cipriano house is a cow path that is very, very narrow and goes back into the woods and in no way is it going to able to manage construction vehicles of any kind.  They will tear up the road at the top of this steep hill.  I understand that the previous owner also wished to develop and that’s how that road straight out to Mount Airy Road East occurred so that never impact on our cul-de-sac, there would be a separate entrance going into the area.  We verge on Con Edison lines and I believe that if there is blasting, which there has to be because we live on rock, Con Edison will have to speak to that because that will have impact on those towers that go straight across in back of our houses.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anyone else?

Mr. Michael Misch presented himself and stated I live on 34 East Mount Airy Road with my wife.  We live about 200 yards east of Joseph Wallace Drive which would be, when you look at the two circles, the one on the left, we would probably be below the proposed development.  I’m worried about septic tanks, septic systems, septic seepage and I’m afraid that by drilling wells in that area our water will be affected, the quality of our water.  We, at times in the summer, almost run dry even though there’s a lot of water and we have to be careful with the use of the water.  My major concern is not only that there will be more traffic, there will be more activity, it’s every action creates a reaction, something has to happen and I don’t think it will happen to the good.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else from the area?

Mr. John Bernard stated this application needs to be referred to the DEP and I propose that we refer this back to staff to have the applicant refer to DEP and adjourn the public hearing, seconded  with all in favor saying "aye."  
PB 5-10      c.
Public Hearing: Referral from the Town Board of a proposed Draft Zoning Amendment dated February 1, 2010 with respect to changes to the Town Zoning Code Section 307-4 (Definitions), 307-14 & 15  (Table of Permitted Uses) and the addition of a new Section 307-65.5,  (Contractor’s Yards) and 307-65.6 (Specialty Trade Contractors.)

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe that there were a couple rather minor changes.  Ivan you had some concerns on this one?
Mr. Ivan Kline responded I had one comment on whether the 1,000 foot buffer requirement in what becomes part C of section 307-65.5 relating to Contractor’s Yards, whether that length buffer should be applicable for storage of materials as compared to crushing, grinding or other processing because it seems like a different less impactive activity and I know that at the work session the question came up how these provisions relating specifically to Contractor’s Yards, how they might impact something that was being permitted as a junkyard or whether there was any intention to have any impact there.  I know John had a comment as well relating to Specialty Trade Contractors.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for the record.  What’s the driving legislation is the desire of the part of the Town Board to minimize the impact of Contractor’s Yard in adjacent residential areas and the storage of raw materials in the building would help cut down on future dusting which sometimes is an issue next to construction yards.  

Mr. John Bernard stated I would like the Town Board to reanalyze the Specialty Trade Contractors where it says “they shall be limited to the following” some of those trades involve some fabrication and some use of what might be considered raw materials so I would just encourage the Town Board to take a look at the language defining Specialty Trade Contractors.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one that you didn’t specifically mention was the structural steel erection. 

Mr. John Bernard stated well structural steel erection certainly they’re dealing in what I would call raw materials but they’re also fabricating connections to me that’s fabrication.  You’re going to have the same issues with water well drilling because they’re going to be bringing in casing materials that they have to fabricate for specific sites and again, that’s a problem of definition.  It depends on how you look at it.  I just wouldn’t want to get somebody in a bind where they’re operating and they think they’re within the confines of the law and then find out that maybe by virtue of language they’re not.  
Mr. Ed Vergano stated one way we could address that is to actually more clearly define raw materials.  The intent was there were materials that were going to be used to make construction materials like steel or whatever, raw materials being earth, rock, materials of a natural form. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I understand the intent but you have a problem there with stonework.  You have stonework, tile setting, plastering, every one of those trades requires raw materials to come in and be stored and modified before use.  It’s okay by me, just trying to avoid a corner.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s fine, so noted. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated we also have a question, unless it was already addressed by Ivan on page 2 “pivoted activities.”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated he did address that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to make sure how that impacts junkyards or if it does at all if it was intended to.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated under ‘Contractor’s Yard’ in letter a) you’re missing the word “Planning Department” also in c) where it says “1,000 foot buffer unless it’s contained in a fully enclosed building” the presumption there, which I don’t know if it’s the correct one is that if it’s in a fully enclosed building it can be right up against a residential area?  That’s by implication what that is saying, I don’t know if that’s the intent.  Having said all that when we get to voting on this I will be abstaining from voting on this and the reason for that is ultimately that I don’t believe any of our comments are listened to anyway as part of the approval process by the Town Board.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other comments to be made here?  If you have something to say step right up.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated in regards to your memo to the Town Board I’ve read the law and I’m a little curious as to what happens to existing processing systems, existing manufacturing zones.  Do they become non-conforming and they now not expand?  I think that needs to be clear in that rule.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just in terms of the buffer is the only place they address “the requirement should not apply to any Contractor’s Yard legally existing at the time of the adoption” it doesn’t address to I guess what Mr. Mastromonaco is referring to.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think there were some issues here on a memo from Ed.  There are issues for the Planning Board to focus on as how to handle the existing Contractor’s Yards.  We have some options to allow any legally existing Contractor’s Yard to continue to be regulated under the current Contractor’s Yard standards now and in the future.  This is for existing yards or to “any legally existing Contractor’s Yard existing on the date of the enactment of this local law shall be deemed to be granted a Special Permit as provided for herein regardless as to whether they comply with any of the requirements of this provision.  Any future expansion of legal Contractor’s Yards will be required to meet the conditions of the new Special Permit requirements.  3) To render all existing legal Contractor’s Yards as a non-conforming as per section 307-77 of the Zoning Code or 4) finally, to allow them, meaning Contractor’s Yards, to be continued to be regulated under the current Contractor’s Yards standards however, require them to comply with new subsections b), c), e) and m) or the proposed Contractor’s Yard Special Permit language.”  There were these options that we need to think about and make some…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s not part of the proposal.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s not part of the proposal but I guess some sense of where we’re thinking about it might be helpful that’s why it’s here.  I don’t think we’ve actually discussed this at all too.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we discussed it very briefly after the special meeting with Mill Court Crossing and I think Tom Bianchi had an opinion sort of I believe it was leaning towards the number 2 option making them give them a Special Permit but then any expansion would be required to meet the new Special Permit.  I think that’s what his opinion was but that was just one number.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’ve checked off 2 and 4 as possibilities.  I’m not at all in favor of 1 or 3.  I don’t know where everybody else stands and so I don’t know what to do with that piece.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess the issue is we can propose one of those four options but ultimately it’s up to the Town Board to decide how they want to handle that issue.
Mr. John Klarl stated they’re the legislative body. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the point is do we want to make a decision now?  I don’t know how many people really considered them and have decided a decision.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if we don’t act on it now then they’ll enact something that will not include at least a consideration of our recommendation.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked shall we go down the list 1 to 4 and see where we stand on it?  Are there any that we absolutely know we don’t want to consider for example?

Mr. Robert Foley stated what you were reading from Ed was we had at the last meeting.  What’s the date on it?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded April 22nd, 2010.

Mr. John Bernard asked why don’t we recommend that the Town Board consider one or more of the options that are in that letter?
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’d rather think that they would prefer a recommendation from us.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated number 1 allows them to just continue to operate as they operate now.  That’s sort of the least restrictive option on the existing Contractor’s Yards.  They continue to operate as they do now.  Number 2 they’re automatically granted a Special Permit so they can continue to operate but any legal expansion of that they’d have to be subject to the new Special Permit.  That’s somewhat constricting to the business.  Number 3 make them all non-conforming which is the most restrictive I don’t know what the right way to say it.  Those are basically the three different options the Town Board has.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you have number 4.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, but pick and choose certain…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’m with John that we should just note for the Town Board they ought to consider this because I frankly agree with what Steve said that we can sit here and spend from 11:15 to midnight debating it and it’s not going to matter in the slightest.  I just as soon have the Town Board do whatever it’s going to do when it adopts this thing.  We spent hours debating on the last proposal or making recommendations that I thought were good and they were just ignored wholesale so I don’t know that it’s a productive use of our time to sit here and debate 1, 2, 3 or 4 on this stuff.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether we have to have a debate.  I really don’t know that. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated or a discussion. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe we are more of a mind than you think.  I don’t know.  I would like to just see if there’s anybody, for example, who would absolutely vote for 1, or 2, or 3, or 4.  Where do you tend to fall in terms of which of these four options?  Where do you stand?  What do you want?

Mr. Robert Foley asked what was 4 again?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded 4 was allowing them to continue to be regulated under the standards for current Contractor’s Yards but they would have to comply with subsections b), c), e) and m) now some of these things have to do with noise and with dust, that kind of thing.  

Mr. John Klarl stated number 2 is like we’ve handled camps and schools where you go get a Special Permit and if you want to expand it you come in and get a Special Permit also.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but when you want to expand they have to be 1,000 feet of something and be…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated which may mean they have to change the whole operation. 

Mr. John Klarl stated for the expansion.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, for their existing use as well.  They could have something that’s within a 1,000 feet and if they want to expand to another part of their property you’re going to make them change what they already have that may be less than 1,000 feet from a neighboring property.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how about number 2?  I’m inclined to go with number 2.  I checked off 2 and 4.  2 is a possibility “any legally existing Contractor’s Yard existing on the date of the enactment of the law shall be deemed to be granted a Special Permit regardless as to whether they comply with the requirements of the provision” but any future expansion of those yards means that they will be required to meet the conditions of the new Special Permit requirements.  They can continue to operate under the Special Permit even if they don’t comply, even if they never comply.  But as soon as they decide they want to make a change or expand then they have to comply. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the key question here does that expansion apply to the entire property or just the expanded operation? 

Mr. John Klarl stated that’s what Steve and I were talking about.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you wrote the little memo just throwing out ideas so why don’t you answer it and then give it to the Town Board and give them five ideas of what they can do.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’d have to define expansion.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 1 certainly is fine, 2 is fine also if you define that it’s the expansion area that comes under the purview of the new regs.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated in other words, the existing area just continues to exist under the existing…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated with the Special Permit. 

Mr. Ed Vergano continued with the Special Permit as it has for whatever but just the new area has to comply with the new regulations. 

Mr. John Klarl stated the expanded area. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated right. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that seems so familiar.  This is the way things have gone for a long time.  You create a new law, you operate under the one that you came in under but when you make a change you have to change and you comply with the new regulations otherwise nobody would ever move and update anything and become more efficient…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for clarity, comply with the new regulation just in regard to the expanded area not the entire operation.  That’s the key question here.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated “any future expansion of legal Contractor’s Yards” I don’t know from my mind any future expansion of a Contractor’s Yards – I don’t need a whole lot of interpretation for that.  If you choose to expand…
Mr. Ivan Kline stated we’re not debating the meaning not of the law the Town Board’s proposed but of the memo Ed wrote a couple of weeks ago.  What’s the point of that quite honestly?  It can clarify his memo.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the key word is “expansion” for me expansion means you come for an application you want to expand your business…

Mr. John Klarl stated expansion can be use or intensity.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t want to get into that level of discernment.  Is it a little bit of expansion or a lot of expansion or is it maybe medium size.  Expand, you expand that’s for me is cut-and-dry.  I don’t know about the rest of you.  I’d like to get some sense of what we think we could recommend.  I would like to have a vote on 1 for example.  Is there anybody who wants 1? 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I could vote for 1.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked 1 what?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated 1 being the least restrictive to business.  

Mr. Ivan Kline asked 1 on the Ed list?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated for current Contractor’s Yards.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they just don’t change, they just stay the same the way they are, they operate the way they are. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated now and in the future.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes they don’t change, nothing changes.  

Mr. John Klarl stated so Vergano option 1.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would not vote for number 1 because I think when the Town or any community decides it wants to improve things and it decides to do so by creating these new regulations I don’t know that any group of people or businesses should just be allowed to continue item for item would never have thought that they would ever change for any reason.  I just don’t think that’s healthy. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated people establish businesses under existing laws.  You change it and you tell them they have to change their business.  That’s what you’re saying.  That’s exactly what you’re saying. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no, no, I’m saying that’s why I’m voting for 2, they could stay where they are as long as they stay where they are but as soon as they want to make a change then they should be obligated to comply with the new Codes. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I would agree with that if it was for the expansion area.  Again, people may have investments and equipments in property where they’ve set up these operations and you’re now saying because they want to expand it you may have to move all of that equipment in those operations and redo your whole site plan.  That’s really what you’re telling people and I don’t think that’s fair. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you also have a requirement that it’s got to be on or within 1,500 square feet of a State highway.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t see it that way. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if somebody today has some very extensive operation that’s 500 feet from a residential area and they want to expand, you’re now going to say take that very significant operation that’s 500 feet and move it 1,000 feet away.  I think that’s an unreasonable request and expense to ask of an applicant.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t agree with that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s why we have seven people on the Board. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I always say “I’m only one vote.”  If you would like to vote folks, let’s go on down.  One person says 1, I would vote for 2.

Mr. John Bernard stated I would vote to give it to the Town Board with Ed’s memo.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s Ed’s memo?

Mr. John Bernard responded the one we’re reading. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but these are the options that the Planning Board – he’s not the Planning Board.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s just a recommendation.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated exactly, and we’re not making any recommendations.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’d like to make a recommendation, I don’t think it has any value but I’d like to make a recommendation. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked a recommendation on the material in this…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’d like to make a recommendation on one of the four options to the Town Board. 

Mr. John Klarl stated and you were going with Vergano option 1.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I would vote for 1 and I would vote for 2, I would even vote for 1 with a Special Permit.  I would grandfather it with a Special Permit.  I would modify – do a 1a.

Mr. John Klarl asked doesn’t it become 2?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded except you’ve got this issue of expansion and what does the new regulations apply to, the existing operation or the proposed expansion?  That’s where I have an issue. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m leaning towards 2.  Although I would as soon agree with what John is saying but I don’t have that memo from Ed in front of me.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I’ll go with 2.

Mr. John Bernard stated I’ll vote for number 2 as long as if there’s an expansion then the Zoning Board will have to get involved with that. 

Mr. John Klarl stated they’ll only get involved if it isn’t carefully defined.  If it’s carefully defined they don’t have to get to it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know that we’ll carefully define it tonight.  We’re looking at that as one way to go.  Steve said he could vote for that.  What about you Ivan?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded if forced to pick one of these I’d probably pick number 2 as I understand seems to be the version of 2 that applies it to the expansion area.  That’s not how I would handle this but if forced that’s what I would recommend.  Now, can I make a motion?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I move that we have staff prepare a memo that reflects the Board’s comments at this meeting and give it to the Town Board to do with it as they wish.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we can prepare a Resolution.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t want to move for that Resolution because I don’t think that Resolution reflects the Board’s comments.  We’d have to now go back and mark up that Resolution because that Resolution says we recommend approving what they put in front of us and that’s not what we’re doing.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t think there were that many changes.  You had a couple of things and he could actually change the wording to reflect what we want.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think the issue is the recommendation should include what we’re recommending in terms of the options as well.  To be clear that if you’re going to set the new regs that there should something in the regs that defines what happens to existing operations.  That’s not in there now and we’re saying adopt this but also tell them this but they can just adopt this and ignore that.  They can do that anyway.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would transmit the Resolution with a cover letter and it’s not the best solution but the cover letter would say “the Planning Board did discuss the four options presented in the April 22nd memo dealing with how this should impact existing Contractor’s Yards and there’s general agreement around number 2 with some discussion about modifying it to include only expanded areas.”  You can do something like that or we can just put it into a memo form back to the Board.  Typically in the form of a Resolution but we can do it in a memo form.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked when we did the rules for the Planning Board did we do a Resolution?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.

Mr. Ivan Kline responded no we did a memo.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated just a memo, that’s fine. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated do the memo why start a new precedence here. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it is a public hearing. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if there is anybody out here who would like to speak but if theirs is anyone else who would like to speak this is a public hearing and you should come up and identify yourself and make your comments.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated part of my motion should be to close the public hearing and then direct staff to prepare a memo that reflects the comments made by the Board at this meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just for the record, I’ll abstain on the motion.
OLD BUSINESS
PB 13-05    a.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated January 14, 2010 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of a 52.78 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision and Site Development for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated July 8, 2009 and on drawings entitled “Preliminary Landscape Plan” and “Stone Wall Plan” both prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. and dated July 21, 2009.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they had requested that they be removed from the agenda and adjourned to our July meeting.  
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I move that we refer this back and bring this back at our July 7th meeting, seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you did say that you got some permission from them to extend…

Mr. John Klarl stated for the record, the last two lines of the letter from the attorney Peter Lynch states “we respectfully request this application be adjourned from the agenda this evening to the July 2010 meeting.  We also consent to the extended time to vote on the application to the August 2010 meeting.”  He sent us a letter consenting to an extension to August.

Mr. Robert Foley stated quickly on the question just for the benefit of the public at that July meeting we will see some type of additional alternative on the plan from what they’re saying in the letter.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 9-09      b.
Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval, a Renewal of a Junkyard Special Permit and a Steep Slope Permit for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated April 22, 2010 (see prior PB 35-06).

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated on behalf of Brookfield, the applicant.  We just made a submission last week submitting the traffic report prepared by Bill Fitzpatrick and a tree removal plan.  Those outstanding items completed our response to the comment review memo prepared by Mr. Vergano and Mr. Kehoe.  We had presumed that your Board would not want to schedule a public hearing for July until your Board and staff and Mr. Canning had an opportunity to review that information.  Although, what we would ask tonight is if your Board would consider to schedule it now a public hearing for the August meeting and between now and August obviously everybody would have sufficient time to review those materials and if for whatever reason there was a major deficiency of any kind then that would be adjourned until September.

Ms. Susan Todd asked how do we feel about the possibility of August?  Would that be in line a public hearing in August or should we wait?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded August is fine. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the traffic study has to be reviewed by John Canning but he’s usually pretty fast.  It’s definitely not happening in July but the question is do they schedule in August or do they schedule it for August at the July meeting?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what’s the difference?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I don’t know what the difference is you might want to schedule it for August at the July meeting. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated then we would know if everything is coming in on time too.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you want to wait until July?

Ms. Susan Todd responded yes.  I’d like to make a motion to refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 1-10      c.
Application of Curry Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for the modification and expansion of the existing Curry Hyundai/Subaru to Curry Toyota and for the demolition of the existing HSBC Bank Building and the former Midas Muffler Shop and the construction of an approximately 26,500 sq. ft. Curry Subaru/Hyundai dealership on a 5.305 acre parcel of property located at 3025 East Main Street (Route 6) as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Curry Properties” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated April 7, 2010.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated we have upgraded our drawings.  We were able to put our buildings into the existing setting and we think we’re ready for a public hearing in July.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we schedule the public hearing for our July 7th meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 21-08    d.
Application of Nida Associates for Preliminary Plat Approval of a 4 lot major subdivision of a 4.28 acre parcel of property located at the northeast corner of Albany Post Road (Route 9A) and Baltic Place as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Plat for Nida Associates, Inc.”, prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated February 9, 2010 (see prior PB 21-03).

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated we made an application for subdivision approval and at that time we knew that we needed Variances.  This is the shopping center, the A&P shopping center by the end of Furnace Dock Road.  We received comments from Chris and Ed.  We responded to those.  In those comments we were asked to go to the Zoning Board.  We went to the Zoning Board, we had three meetings with the Zoning Board and at the conclusion of those three meetings was that we should come back to the Planning Board and we should have something from the Planning Board that essentially says that with those Variances you’re okay with the rest of the project, excluding the Variances which is the Zoning Board’s prerogative.  If you can look at the proposed subdivision plan and just write them a memo saying that you’ve reviewed it, we’ve answered your comments from the previous letter, we can go back there and the Zoning Board will have at least some more comfort that if they do grant the Variances that we wouldn’t have to come back here again and you wouldn’t change the plan.  I guess that happened with the parking thing with the Cortlandt Medical Center.

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s slightly circular but Mr. Mastromonaco’s right.  He’s appeared before the Zoning Board on a couple of occasions.  At the last Zoning Board of Appeals public hearing they asked Mr. Hoch to go into the Planning Board file and pull out some more Planning Board materials specifically they were looking to see if we might have issued response memo to the Planning Board staff review memo.  In addition, they wanted to do a coordinated review so they want to get too far out in front on the application without hearing more from the Planning Board.  They’re trying to do a coordinated review and they’re trying to do some more homework as to what’s occurred on this application.  There was an application in 2003 and there was this present application in 2008.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked 2003?

Mr. John Klarl responded yes.  There was a prior PV application 21-03.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that might have just been Nida Associates…

Mr. John Klarl stated it could have been some revision.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is it for an out building or something?  I thought it wasn’t this.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the original one was for an entrance canopy and a ramp.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated at the A&P.

Mr. John Klarl stated the Zoning Board’s looking at this but they don’t want to get – they want to do a coordinated review.  They don’t want to get out ahead of the Planning Board so they were looking to some more guidance from the Planning Board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that based on what I’ve heard at the work session, not all of us are pretty clear on what this is and what we should be doing so it may take a while.  It’s not going to be anything quick like for next month, that’s for sure.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I’m really trying to come back to the Planning Board at this point, spend some time here so I can go back to the Zoning Board but when I go back to the Zoning Board I would at least like to have some sort of memo saying that you’ve looked at all of the issues and that other than the granting of the Variances you’re okay with the proposed subdivision.  Things that we may discuss would be maintenance agreements, easements things like that, whatever comes up.  I possibly can’t have a public hearing and some comments may come out of that public hearing.  You can issue a preliminary approval of that subdivision that would greatly help our application subject to the Zoning Board granting those Variances.  There are things that you can do to move this application along which I hope you would.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know.  I think what I was trying to say is I don’t know whether the Board would necessarily at this point in time without a lot more information want to move it along.  I don’t know that we can send something to Zoning Board of Appeals and saying “okay, we’re looking at this and we think it’s okay.”  We don’t know what it is. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated what I would ask you to do in that case is have a public hearing, and have a vote on the preliminary subdivision application which of course would be subject to Variances granted by the Zoning Board and that would be more regular as to what you do here without changing up the process that much. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just to go back this came up during the work session, what’s the need for the subdivision?  Currently, all these facilities and buildings are on the single lot correct?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated they are on separate tax lots.  I’m generalizing here but they are on separate tax lots. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated but a single lot.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded one owner but there are separate tax lots. 

Mr. John Klarl asked but the Zoning Board of Appeals was making that inquiry of Mr. Mastromonaco asking if they were doing it for conveyancing reasons for financing reasons and I think Mr. Mastromonaco at one point said that there was some family issues here.  But they asked you if it was for conveyancing, to convey lots, was it for financing?
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded business purposes if you want to call it that.  

Mr. John Klarl stated but they asked questions…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated for financial reasons.

Mr. John Klarl stated but they asked that question, they were trying to find out exactly what the thinking was.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I should say also that if you look at this application what we did was when we went to the Zoning Board, and I gave you copies of this, we gave almost a complete story in this application booklet everything you want to know about this application is in there.  One of the most, as far as you’re concerned is there are no new lots in this application.  We’re not creating any new lots.  We have a certain number of tax lots and those were the ones we’re dividing up into.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is it unusual to have separate tax lots on one lot?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I don’t know.

Mr. John Klarl stated no, for example at the Cortlandt Town Center McDonald’s has a pad called a certain section block in lot so we hit them for taxes without going through the shopping center.  So we do it quite a bit.
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated can I make a suggestion that we ask Mr. Kehoe or Mr. Vergano to review our memo, our report to the Zoning Board and come back to you with a plan for a procedure to follow.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated recommendation.  Why don’t we refer it back to staff? 

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

CORRESPONDENCE

PB 24-00    a.
Letter dated April 19, 2010 from John Kellard, P.E. requesting 3 retroactive and 1 additional six month re-approval of Final Plat approval for the Maple Avenue Partners Subdivision located on Maple Avenue.

Mr. John Klarl stated I’m going to recuse myself.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I move that we adopt Resolution 31-10 that approves this request, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 12-07    b.
Letter (received by the Planning Division on May 20, 2010) from Louie Lanza requesting four modifications to the approved site plan for the Safe Management Inc. storage facility and classic car restoration located at 28 Reynolds Lane.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated before I make a motion I saw somebody in the hallway and they happened to mention to me that you had cut down some trees or you have advertising on the side of the building?

Mr. Louie Lanza stated no sir.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated there was some tree removal early on. 

Mr. Louie Lanza stated a couple of years ago. 

Mr. John Klarl asked and the State gave you a remediation plan?  The State gave you a plan they had to follow.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I believe the remediation was part of the site plan approval.

Mr. John Klarl stated but I thought the State of New York also had worked on…didn’t they have a sit down with the State of New York?

Mr. Louie Lanza responded never.

Mr. John Klarl stated about the trees that were removed?

Mr. Louie Lanza stated the only correspondence that we had was from State was to do a beautification program past our property but we never…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated replanting the trees in connection with the legal tree removal is included in the site plan, the Resolution.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we approve the modifications, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

NEW BUSINESS
PB 7-10    a.
Application of Valeria Development Corporation for Preliminary & Final Plat Approval and for Amended Site Development Plan Approval for changes to Section III for an amendment to 18 of the 147 approved lots at Valeria to allow their development as six (6) “threeplex” units rather than three (3) “sixplex” units and for the elimination of Lot 155, the reconfiguration of Lot 153 and for a modification of Lot 152 and for modifications to the approved recreation facilities and modifications to the size and materials of 4 of 6 model types as shown on a 42 page set of drawings entitled “Valeria” prepared by Joseph Riina, P.E. latest revision dated May 2010 and on an 8 page set of floor plans and elevations prepared by EDI Architecture, PC latest revisions dated February 3, 2009 and May 18, 2010 (see prior PB 18-98).

Mr. Bill Zot stated appearing for the applicant.  You have a little colored up plan there and the green boxes represent already approved units that was approved by the Board back in 2007; three buildings, six units in each, three sixplexes.  What we’re proposing to do is to maintain the same number of units but divide them into six buildings.  So, there’ll be six threeplexes rather than three sixplexes.  The green boxes that you see there will be joined together to form six buildings, not three, same exact number of units. 
Mr. Steven Kessler asked which buildings are you talking about Bill?

Mr. Bill Zot responded lot numbers 7 through 24 Steve.  You see the numbers on the lots?  This is a reduced photocopy of the originally approved subdivision plat.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so before these were three buildings instead of six?

Mr. Bill Zot responded exactly.  I’m only showing you the subdivision plat because that’s really what we’re asking you to amend.  Basically, what would happen is the boundary lines between and amongst these 18 lots would be modified to accommodate six buildings each having three units as opposed to the already approved three buildings having six units.  In order to get there we need a little bit of additional land so we’re taking the yellow lot, lot number 155 adding that acreage to this numbers 7 through 24.  The aggregated acreage represented by all of that will now contain the exact same number dwelling units in smaller buildings.  Along the way we get to preserve a stand of evergreen trees which would originally have been removed to accommodate some recreational facilities on lot 155.  As was explained in the cover memo we’re also going to be modifying the overall recreation plan so as to improve and add to and upgrade all of the existing clubhouse and recreational facilities that are part of the existing Valeria complex.  I mention that now more as a matter of information than anything else because the recreational component of this project was addressed by the payment of a $580,000 recreation fee.  This is more or less a private contract between the developer and the existing homeowners association which was entered into 10 years ago but is being modified now in recognition of the reduced need for new facilities and the apparent need to upgrade and maintain an approved existing facilities.  All the details are laid out in the memo that accompanied the application.  In addition to that we’re proposing to modify the size of some of the units; 4 of the 6 currently approved unit designs have the capacity to be reduced in depth.  Current market conditions, and we’ve all experience that and we know what it’s all about, dictated the need for reduction and pricing of the overall project and that meant that we needed to make a small unit available for people who were prepared to spend less on these units as a purchase price.  The units would be reduced in the middle by approximately 6 feet not all, only those who choose to buy those units would be buying a reduced-sized unit.  The architectural appearance would remain the same.  Building heights would be reduced slightly but from an overall appearance standpoint there would be no change.  Actually, the amount of impervious surface would be reduced because the smaller units would occupy a smaller footprint.  In addition to that we’re proposing to modify the siding from previously approved cement board to vinyl.  We have samples here which we can show you or we can hand them up at the public hearing if you would like whichever you prefer.  I think I pretty much covered all the bases at this point.  We’d be asking you basically to approve a modification to the final plat for the reasons stated and I think we’d probably ask you to set a hearing on this for the early as possible date.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I personally haven’t had time to look at this given when the packages came, so I don’t know at this point what I would be voting to approve.  I understand what you’re saying, what you’d like but I really would like to have a chance to look it over.  Also, I wanted to ask how much work has been done out there at Valeria since we approved them?

Mr. Bill Zot responded that’s actually identified on the application summary.  At the second page I think it was prepared by Mr. Eickelbeck who is here tonight, right here.  Status of construction page 2 of his report “the following work has been completed since final approval was granted.  Phase I of sewer treatment plant and upgrades is complete.  Ash pit on west of the Furnace Dock Road has been capped per DEC recommendations.  Retention basins, in section 3, have been installed.  Berm along Furnace Dock Road, in section 3, has been graded.  Sales office renovation and site improvements have been completed.”
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated units, have any of them – the units that were approved have any of them been built?

Mr. Bill Zot asked are you referring to individual units?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Bill Zot responded no.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I would make a motion that we refer this back to staff, seconded.

Mr. John Bernard stated on the question, the original approved application, one of the many requirements was turtle surveys.  I think for two or three years now there’s been a request for the turtle survey that was supposed to be done on an annual basis I don’t remember exactly how frequent but it never occurred?

Mr. Bill Zot responded I have the turtle man here that’s John Nemeth so he can address it more directly than me.  As I understand it we posted the requisite monitoring fee and the turtle habitat maintenance program is being overseen by the Town’s consultant whom we’ve been paying. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked was that the Town’s consultant Coleman?

Mr. Bill Zot responded yes, we’re paying your consultant.

Mr. John Bernard stated but there’s been no report produced.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but there’s no inventory report?

Mr. John Bernard responded no.

Mr. Bill Zot responded I’m not sure, I’ll ask John to report in.  I don’t know what the specifics of the mandate were beyond funding and the monitoring by the Town’s designated consultant.  We can go back and look at the Resolution and determine to what extent reports needed to be provided but John can you fill us in?

Mr. John Nemeth responded actually that report you’re requesting there was a 15 page report done that you requested apparently.  If you don’t have it I’ll give you a copy of it, it has been provided.  When you guys asked us to do an inventory of everything that report was done.

Mr. John Bernard asked was that the initial survey?

Mr. John Nemeth responded prior to the construction you guys asked us to…

Mr. John Bernard asked what about subsequent surveys?

Mr. John Nemeth responded we pay the Town consultants to do that. 

Mr. John Bernard asked have you seen that report?


Mr. John Nemeth responded we have been working with staff…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’re looking for it right now.  I believe one was a year ago, what’s the date?  June 15th, 2009 from Steve Coleman.  We can provide the Board copies of that. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but the report basically said that everything was okay?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t think you ever distributed that report. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I can look for it.  Did the report sort of indicate that things were going as…
Mr. Ed Vergano stated frankly I don’t recall the topic -- we’re skimming through it right now.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it was distributed June 23rd, 2009.  I got the stamp on it.  

Mr. John Bernard asked would you mind recopying us on it?  I’d appreciate that.

Mr. Bill Zot asked is there any indication Chris that the applicant was copied on that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.  I think you’re aware of the June 15th – this was the one where Coleman went out.  There are some open-ended questions at the end of it but Coleman went out in June of 2009.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you so much because it will be helpful to have something like that for the next…

Mr. Bill Zot stated if it’s an annual report we can expect another one shortly. 

Mr. John Bernard asked one other question I had was on the – how does Valeria work now?  Are they like a homeowners association so everybody contributes to the support of their swimming pool and keeps it in good repair?
Mr. Bill Zot stated there’s actually two governing bodies: each of the condominium units current section 1 and section 2 is an individual condominium regime and together they send representation to an umbrella organization called Dickerson Pond Association Incorporated.  When sections 3 and 4 are built they will likewise have their own management regime except these will be townhouses as opposed to condos, they too will have representation on Dickerson Pond Association Inc., that’s the umbrella body that takes care of all the site infrastructure. 
Mr. John Bernard asked so right now you have three organization, three political organizations on site that are supposed to be self-funding the upkeep of the recreational facilities which I understand are in dire need of repairs and that’s what you’re going to transfer the record. 

Mr. Bill Zot responded which is exactly what our client responded to was the need for repairs to the existing infrastructure.

Mr. John Bernard asked why would that be if there’s three organizations to fund it?

Mr. Bill Zot responded they would have to speak to that I can’t.

Mr. John Bernard stated in other words that’s just going to be a continuing problem, they’re not going to…

Mr. Bill Zot responded it may very well be that the assumption when this project was conceived back in the 1980’s at 525 units that that number of units would be more than sufficient to meet the recreational needs of all those units and enough income generated thereby to provide that need.  However, with only 80 units on line right now they’re obviously deficient and that’s the reason, in part, they’re anxious to see the current project applicant moved forward with these improvements.

Mr. John Bernard stated so you’re suggesting that the 80 units have been paying some monies towards repair and maintenance but it hasn’t been enough to do an adequate job. Is that the case?

Mr. Bill Zot responded that’s my understanding.  I can’t state that personally because I don’t represent any of them but that’s my understanding.  Is that a fair statement?

Mr. John Bernard stated well there has been a track record in Town of other homeowner associations who eventually fall on hard times and aren’t able to support themselves and then things fall under rack-and-run.  Is this going to be a similar situation whether you have a build-out or not?

Mr. Bill Zot responded I certainly can’t predict that but I would certainly think not.  I can tell you from…

Mr. John Bernard stated it seems to be the case presently.

Mr. Bill Zot stated I don’t think that’s a fair statement at all.  I think the key infrastructure is being provided for.  They’re in a water district and they receive domestic water from the Cortlandt Consolidated Water District where the Montrose District is.  I’m not sure which one.  There’s an existing sewage treatment plant which has been upgraded to contemporary standards and which my client has been supplementing the operating cost on for the same reasons I just described.  The sooner these 147 units can be built and brought on line the more contributors there will be to the maintenance of that sewage treatment plant and to the recreational facilities and to the internal road network. 

Mr. John Bernard asked this switching from hardy plank to vinyl, is that recycled vinyl?  Is there some particular reason for going to vinyl?  Is it that big a cost factor?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we’re going to refer this can we possibly discuss this when it comes back on?

Mr. John Bernard responded sure, I’m almost done.

Mr. Bill Zot asked can I allow Mr. Eikelbeck to answer that?

Mr. Eikelback stated basically it’s a cost factor.  It’s one of the significant expenses that we feel we can save and in addition to reducing the size of the units that would allow us to offer these at a more competitive market price.  The color is the same.  We’ve been able to match exactly the color which was really the requirement that we had to meet.  Initially we had much more ambitious plans as far as obviously the size and the price of the materials that we were using and in one of our reassessments of the market this is one of the locations that we can save something, not to mention the appearance.
With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 8-10    b.
Application of Baker Capital, LP for amended site Development Plan Approval for the conversion of interior space in an existing warehouse building to office space, the construction of 9 additional parking spaces and for a new monument sign located at 510-534 Furnace Dock Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Ralph Peragine, P.E. dated May 21, 2010 (see prior PB 27-01).

Mr. Don Duthaler presented himself and stated I’m director of Property Management I’m with Baker Capital.  Baker is the property owner of the property at 510-534 Furnace Dock Road that’s located in an MD zone.  One of our tenants PolyMedCo has approached us with the request that we’re working through.  PolyMedCo has been a tenant since 1991.  They are a distributor and wholesaler of medical diagnostic equipment and test kits.  They currently occupy just about 66,000 square feet in two buildings at the park.  One of those consists of a 9,600 square foot stand-alone building which are currently using as storage.  What they would like to do is utilize that 9,600 square foot building for storage to imagine distribute one of their product lines.  As part of that they would like to renovate the storage building to add offices.  What they’re looking for is – the offices would to be simply to support the wholesaling and distribution operations.  What they’re envisioning – this is the main building on the property.  The is the storage building This shows the floor plan of the storage building in question and also shows a conceptual layout of the space.  We have approximately five offices that we’re laying out as well as some accessory rooms such as conference room, kitchen and a lab where they would service some of their equipment.  The balance of the space would remain as it is now, wholesale and distribution.  The question that we have or what we’re requesting approval for is adding parking in support of this. What we’d like to do is add parking along the front of that building which would result in adding an additional 9 spaces and we’d also convert one space over to serve as a handicap accessible space, so we’d have a net add of 8 spaces.  The Planning Board had previously approved 97 spaces for the property and these additional 8 spaces would improve an existing non-conformity for the property.  Key things to remember for this application: we’re working with an existing paved areas there’s no additional grading, there’s no wetlands or steep slopes issues it’s simply re-striping existing asphalt. 
Mr. John Klarl asked do you have an application before the Zoning Board of Appeals now?  Did you make an application?

Mr. Don Duthaler responded we are preparing one.  We realize that was referenced and we will be submitting one for that.  The other piece to the puzzle is in concurrent with this we would like to update the signage for the park.  There’s currently two…

Mr. John Klarl stated the monument sign.

Mr. Don Duthaler continued there’s a monument sign, park directory and an address sign shall we say.  We’d like to put one single sign up that would neaten up the parking and clean up the entrance.  That would be located on the left side, it would be a double-sided face one and the general layout is shown on the plans if you’re interested in the color rendering.  I can provide that to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I would need that electronically to forward on to the Architectural Advisory Council.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’ll need to meet with staff a bit more.  We’re going to refer this back to staff.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Don Duthaler asked would there be a possibility of getting on a public hearing for July?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it depends on what staff says.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked a public hearing for July?  No we just referred this back to staff.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated they’d have to review it and then come back to us and then we’ll schedule a public hearing.

PB 9-10    c.
Application of Mark Giordano for a re-approval of a 3 lot major subdivision of 1.5 acres located on the south side of Kings Ferry Road, approximately 100 feet west of Tate Avenue and shown on a Final Plat entitled “Subdivision Plat of Kings Ferry Commons” prepared by Glenn Watson, PLS latest revision dated September 23, 2008 (see prior PB 37-06).

Mr. Ivan Kline stated as discussed at the work session I move to approve this application by a Resolution 32-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move to adjourn.
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, JULY 6, 2010

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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